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france telecom Paris, march 21* 2002

France Telecom posts its best-ever operating income in 2001
but net income is negative after non-recurring provisions

Business model geared to generate unleveraged free cash flow

- Sustained growth in revenues (up 27.8%), EBITDA (up 14%)
and operating income (up 7.1%)

- Net income impacted by non-recurring provisions

- Outlook for 2002 — double-digit growth in revenues and EBITDA,
and strong growth in unleveraged free cash flow

= Consolidated revenues; 43.0 billion euros (36% from international operations)

= EBITDA: 12.3 billion euros

= Operating income: 5.2 billion euros

* Income before amortization of goodwill and non-recurring provisions: 5.0 billion euros
= Netincome hefore non-recurring provisions: 1.9 billion euros

= Non-recurring provisions: 10.2 billion euros

* Netloss: -8.3 billion euros

= Net debt (after deducting 2.7 billion euros from disposal of real estate): 60.7 billion euros

= Group unleveraged free cash flow: 4.2 billion euros

= Dividend: 1 euro per share {optional payment in shares)
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Sustained growth In consolidated businesses

in 2001 France Telecom continued to make solid progress and improve its competitive
positions, confirming the strength of its fundamentals, the resilience of its traditional
activity and the vigorous growth of its new businesses.

+ Orange, number one wireless aperator in France and the UK, posted a pro forma
increase in revenues of 25.1% and achieved batance level in unleveraged free
cash flow {excluding UMTS licenses).

«  Wanadoo, number three Internet service provider in Europe, reported an
increase in revenues of 41%, producing positive EBITDA on a restated historical
basis (excluding Freeserve and Indice Multimedia).

« Equant, world leader in network services to multinational corporations, increased
its 12-month pro forma revenues by 12.1% and achieved positive EBITDA in the
fourth quarter. Equant now accounts for nearly a third of the revenues from the
fixed-line, voice and data services segment outside France.

* Fixed-line, voice and data services in France confirmed their strong profitability.
France Telecom maintained its market share against vigorous compstition and is
developing new growth drivers, in particular broadband services such as ADSL.

Thanks 1o its growth strategy centered on wireless, Internet and international business,
France Telecom has doubled revenues over five years o 43 billion euros. lts
international revenues have quadrupled in two years and accounted for 36% of France
Telecom’s consolidated revenues at December 31, 2001.

At the end of December 2001, France Telecom had 91.7 million customers through its
controlled subsidiaries making it one of the top European operators. The Group
achieved critical mass in each of its core business areas and is now consolidating its
positions: Orange, frontrunner in France and the UK, is establishing itself as a pan-
European brand; Wanadoo is combining strengths with Freeserve and Indice
Multimedia, while Equant is bearing the first fruit of its successful merger with Giobal
One after only six months.
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Non-recurring provisions — a healthier balance sheet

During 1999 and 2000, acquisitions were made at the height of stock-market euphoria

and against a background of increasing consolidation in the telecommunications sector.

Since then, the speculative bubble in technology stocks burst in the context of a global

economic slow-down.

France Telecom has decided to take into account the change in the value of certain

investments made during that period, with non-recurring provisions in the 2001 accounts

totaling a net amount of 10.2 billion euros.

These provisions vary in nature. They include:

- 3.19 billion euros to write down its holding and loans related to MobilCom
(Germany), which is experiencing difficulties linked to the development of 3G mobile
telecommunications in a highly competitive market;

- 4.58 billion euros to write down to market value its holding in NTL (United Kingdom),

which is currently restructuring its balance sheet.
2.08 billion euros for a contingency and [oss provision resulting from the commitment
to Equant minority shareholders holding Contingent Value Rights (CVRs), since the
current share price is considerably lower than the benchmark value of 60 euros.
These CVRs mature in July 2004.

- 0.36 billion euros for the accelerated write-down in France Telecom's accounts of
goodwill related to Telecom Argentina, reflecting the deteriorating economic situation
in Argentina.

Outiook for strong growth in business and operating profitability

France Telecom believes that, over the period 2002-2005, the prospects are for double-
digit growth in revenues and EBITDA.

Its business mix includes mature activities such as fixed-line telephony and newer
businesses, now expanding rapidly. Fixed-line telephony is maintaining its overall market
share in a highly competitive environment. It is developing new growth drivers like
broadband services and continues to provide France Telecom with substantial revenues.
New businesses are producing strong EBITDA and are starting to generate regular and
increasing levels of unleveraged free cash flow, in line with forecasts. Orange’s EBITDA,
which doubled between 2000 and 2001 on a pro forma basis, is expected fo increase by
30% in 2002. At the same time, Orange is expected to produce its first year of positive
unleveraged free cash flow.

The maturing of the group's new businesses combined with a stabilization of capital
expenditure provides powerful leverage. France Telecom’s business model is geared
towards accelerating growth in unleveraged free cash flow, which will become
increasingly visible in the coming years.
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Debt reduction

At December 31, 2002 France Telecom’'s net debt stood at 60.7 biflion euros {after
deducting 2.7 billion euros from the disposal of real estate), against 64.9 billion suros at
June 30, 2001.

France Telecom’s debt reduction plan over the period 2002-2005 is two-pronged:
« sustained growth in EBITDA and unleveraged free cash flow
« disposal of non-core assets

Unleveraged free cash flow is rapidly taking over from asset disposais and is expected
to generate approximately 14 billion euros throughout 2002-2006.

France Telecom is also continuing its program of non-core asset disposals:
STMicroelectronics (STM), Sprimt PCS, France Telecom treasury stock, TPS, cable
networks, a second balch of real estate disposals and sale of receivables. Disposals of
fisted and non-listed assets, based on market values in March 2002, is expectsd to
amount to 9 billion euros.

Further sales of non-listed assets have also been decided: holdings in Wind, TDF and
satellite consortia. The sale of these assets, which make a medest contribution to group
EBITDA, is expected to produce 8 billion euros.

Unleveraged free cash flow and non-core asset disposals are designed to France
Telecom to return to a healthier, more balanced financial situation by the end of 2005. In
& pessimistic scenario, the net debt/EBITDA ratio would be between 3.3 and 3.5 at the
end of 2003 and between 2.2 and 2.6 at the end of 2005, against 4.9 at year-end 2001.
In a more optimistic scenario, should the market pick up, the ratio would be between 1.5
and 1.7 around 2005.

Outlook for 2002

The outlook for the current financial year looks favorable for France Telecom. Group
* growth should continue, and will be driven by growth in its core business because the
essential acquisitions needed to achieve critical mass, especially in its new businesses,
have already been made.

Orange is expected to benefit from stable revenues per customer, the decline in
~ acquisition costs and the time lag in expenditures related to UMTS.

Wanadoo is aiming for 8 million customers this year, of which 20% for broadband
services, in the context of a healthier ISP market.

Fixed-line telephony will continue to make a significant contribution to France Telecom
revenues, Ebitda and unleveraged free cash flow.

_» 2002 is expected to see Equant's continued growth in the market for worldwide

carporate services and the integration of the Pofish operator, TPSA.
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The business model set up six years ago is therefore proving its strength and
progressively accelerating. From 2002, it will provide France Telecom with the ability to .
benefit from the increasing profitability generated by mobile, internst and worldwide
corporate services in order to accelerate its debt reduction.

The combined effect of a thriving business, the non-recurring provisions in 2001, the
rapid growth in unleveraged free cash flow and the progressive reduction of its debt
should allow France Telecom to achieve a more balanced financial structure by the end
of 2003.

Miche! Bon, Chairman and Chief Executive of France Telecom, stated:

“2001 was marked by a reversal in the markets that particularly affected the new
technologies sector. France Telecom was not left totally unscathed. From a financial
stand-point, the non-recurring provisions we are taking for asset write-downs translate
into a significant net loss for the year 2001. Meanwhile our debt has been reduced
according to plan. Our business performance is on frack and we are seeing the best
results in our history. All the lights are green. We have more customers, they are
increasingly loyal, and they are using our services more than ever, whether it's Orange,
Wanadoo, Equant or fixed-line telephony.

In 2002 and beyond, with a healthier balance sheet, we shall reap the full benefit of our
growth strategy as it translates into a lasting improvement in our unleveraged free cash
flow. We expect double-digit growth in our revenues and faster growth in our EBITDA
and operating income, as our newer businesses gradually become mature. As our
business mode! allows us to tap significant reserves of profitability we are now really
seeing this strategy we have pursued for five years bear fruit.”

2001 consolidated results

France Telecom's pro forma figures' show consolidated revenues increasing by 8.5%,
Ebitda by 13.0% and operating income by 19.3% compared to 2000.

The audited historical figures have progressed as follows:

Euros in bllllons , 2000 2001 A 2001/2000
Revenues 33.67 43.03 +27.8%
EBITDA 10.81 12.32 +14.0%
QOperating income 4.86 5.20 +7.1%
Net income before amertization of goodwill 4.75 5.02 +5.7%
and non-recurring provisions :

' * non-audited figures
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France Telecom’s consolidated revenues rose to 43 billion euros, an increase of
27.8% over the year 2000, due to strong performances from fixed-line and wiraless -
services.

The very strong growth in revenues reflected the extremely rapid expansion of
international business {up 77.3% in one year), which has more than quadrupled in two
years and now represents 36% of total revenues.

On a pro forma basis, comparing the France Telecom group as it is today with the same
scope in 2000, revenue growth is 8.5%.

EBITDA (12.3 billion euros) has risen strongly at 14.0%. Its growth on a pro forma basis
is 13.0%, growing faster than pro forma revenues (up 8.5%).

Operating Income increased by 7.1% to reach 5.2 billion euros. Pro forma operating
income grew by 19.3%.

Net income before amortization of goodwill and non-recurring provislions grew by
5.7% to 5 billion euros compared to 4.8 billion euros in 2000.

Net income

Euros in billions - 2001

Net income before amartization of goodwill and non-recurring provisions 5.02
Goodwill amortization, recurring -2.53
Goodwili amartization, non-recurring -0.58

Net income before non-recurring provisions 1.93
Non-recurring provisions -10.21

Net income -8.28 |

Net income before non-recurring provisions grew to 1.9 billion euros.
Non-recurring provlsjons represent a net total of 10.2 billion euros including 3.19
billion euros for MobilCom, 4.58 billion euros for NTL, 2.08 billion euros for Equant CVRs
and 0.36 billion euros for Telecom Argentina.

Net loss therefore stood at —8.3 billion euros.

Net debt stood at 60.7 billion euros at December 31, 2001 (after deducting 2.7 billion
euros from the dispasal of real estate) compared with 64.9 billion euros reported at June

30, 2001, Excluding France Telecom convertible bonds and exchangeable notes for
shares of Orange S.A., net debt stood at 50 billion euros.

* xR
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Income by business segment

Orange

This segment combines France Telecom's wireless telephony business in France, UK
and the rest of the world within the Orange group.

Year to December 31

2001 2000 2000 01/00 01/00

proforma historical  pro forma hletorical

(EURbLn)  (EURDLN)  (EUR bn) (%) (%)

GSM network revenues 13,434 10,231 7,815 31,3% 71,9%

Revenues 15,087 12,059 9,025 25,1% 67,2%

EBITOA (1) 3,288 1,765 1,668 86,3% 97.1%
EBITDA / network revenues ' 24% 17% 1%

Current operating income (2} 1,440 383 633  276,0% 127,5%

UMTS Licenses 873 7,268 7,068 ns ns

CAPEX (exxfuding UMTS licences) 3,356 3,361 2,449 (0.1)% 37,0%

(1) EBITDA: camnings before interest, sxand D & A
(2) Opersting income before spesific and special iemy, net depreciation and non-recurring items

The increase in Orange segment revenues of 87.2% on a historical basis includes the
effect of the consolidation of British mobile operator Orange plc from September 1, 2000.
On a pro forma basis the growth reached 25.1% for the three sub-segments of Orange's
business.

Orange France recorded growth of almost 21% in its revenues, generated by a 25%
increase in the number of subscribers (17.8 million at December 31, 2001).

Orange UK's revenues increased by 27% in 2001 on a pro forma basis and the number
of subscribers was up 26% in one year, reaching 12.4 million at December 31, 2001.
Other businesses (most of which are in Europe) saw a rapid expansion, especially in
Belgium, the Netherlands and Romania.

Orange revenuss outside France and UK rose 34.1% in 2001.

The Orange segment EBITDA practically doubled between 2000 and 2001 on a
historical basis. This strong growth is the result of bringing Orange plc within the
consolidation scope and increased profitability generated in France.

On a pro forma basis EBITDA grew more than 86%.

CAPEX, excluding Orange segment UMTS licenses, grew by 37% in 2001, mainly as a
result of the increased consolidation scope. In France it was down 26% due to the
slowdown in investment requirements related to the deployment of 2™ generation sites.

Expenditure on UMTS licenses represented 0.9 billion euros compared with more than 7
billion euros in 2000 (of which 6.6 million euros was for the acquisition of licenses in the

UK.
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Wanadoo

The Wanadoo segment includes Internet access services, portals, e-commerce sites,.
directories and business services.

Year to December 31

2001 2000 2000 0t/00 01/00

pro forma nistorical pro farma historical

restated (3) restaled (3)

{EUR bn) (EUR bn) (EUR bn) (%) (%)

Revenues 1,563 1,210 1,111 29.2% 40,7%
EBITDA (1) -64 -123 -66 48,4% 4,4%
Current oparating income (2) -153 -190 -129 19,3% (18.8)%
CAPEX 111 116 96 4,7)% 15,4%

(1) EBITDA, carnings before intercst axand D & A

(2) Operating income before specific und specul items, not depreciation and non-recurring items

{3) Restated historicu! data establizshed by Wanadoo for 2000 by consolidating Intemet acvess services in the Netherlands and Spain
uand the Pagea Jaunes (Yellow Pages) in France as of Janvary |, 2000. Thosc restated histonical data do ot consolidate the setivities of
Indice Multimedia for nine months of Freeserve for ten months 1n 2000 both of which are included in the duta provided in the pro

forma information shown for 2000.

Wanadoo segment revenues rose to 1,563 million euros at December 31, 2001, an
advance of 40.7% compared to 2000. '

This growth is due to strong increase in the number of active customers (up 56% in one
year, excluding Freeserve) and by the increase in the average monthly revenue per
active customer, especially in France {up 7%), mainly stemming from the surge in
broadband access offers (ADSL and cable).

Directory and business services also increased by 3% on a comparable basis, due to the
acquisition of new customers and the increased average revenue per advertiser as well
as the increase in internet-related revenues from Pages Jaunes.

Pro forma figures show an annual increase in this business in 2001 of 29.2%.

With a slight increase between 2000 and 2001 the Wanadoo segment EBITDA is
moving toward an improvement in profitability with the aim of producing a positive
EBITDA for the year 2002 as a whole. Excluding the effect of the consolidation of
Freeserve and Indice Multimedia, newly included in the consolidation, Wanadoo's
EBITDA was positive at 29 million euros for the year 2001.

On a pro forma basis EBITDA improved by 48%.

Wanadoo segment CAPEX increased by aimost 16% in 2001, due 1o the consolidation
of Freeserve and the increase in capitalized production in the publishing field. This
increase was also due to investments designed to meet the sharp increase in Internet
business.
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Fixed-line, voice and data services in France

The “fixed-line, voice and data services in France” segment includes fixed-line
telephony, data transmission, broadcasting, cable TV and internet activities in France.

Year end Decerrber 31
201 2000 2000 01/00 o1/o0
o orma historica) pro forme Mstorical
{EVR br) (EUR by (EUR g (%) %)
Reverss (1) 123 2603 278 . (1% 11,7%
EBITDA (2 7902 6,011 8142 (1,8)% 28)%
Currer operaling income {3) 4,457 4,509 4626 (1,2% 3.9)%
. CAPEX ) 2,718 2,983 2,383 15,0% 15,0%

(1) The
contractual 1ems of liconses granted to wireless (elephune uperators in Frunice were changed at the end of 2000 with the price charged
to fixed-line subscribers salling wircless netwaork subscribers being set by the fixed-line operators. As a resuk, from Janvary |, 2002
France Telecom’s fixed-line revenucs include receipts from fixed-to-mobile calls billed lo fixed-Ime network subscnbers. Similarly,
the cost of rouling calls, which France Telecoin pays to third party opcratars for carrying thia traffic on their nctworks, is accaunted
for in the operating costs for the period.

(2) EBITDA; earnings before interest, ax und D & A
(3) Operating income before specific and special iems, net depreciarion and non-recurring items

On a pro forma basis, revenues from the fixed-line, voice and data services in France
segment fell by 1.8% in the year 2001. Strong growth in Internet access services and the
expansion of corporate networks was more than offset by the drop in price of fixed-line
telephony services. Added to this were the effects of expansion ot wireless services and
competition from other operators in the long distance telephone market.

EBITDA for the fixed-line, voice and data services in France segment fell 2.9% on a
historical basis between 2000 and 2001. This is explained by:

- actions taken to stabilize France Telecom's market share in fixed-line network
communications in France, particularly the intense mobilization of the corporate
sales force and a greater public relations presence

- development of corporate services.

These items were partially offset by continued productivity gains achieved in the network
operations.

On a pro forma basis, EBITDA for the fixed-line, voice and data services in France
segment fell 1.4%,

CAPEX for the segment increased by 15% between 2000 and 2001. This increase is
mainly explained by investments to:

- expand local and access networks to meet the growing demand for high-speed Internet
and ADSL

- extend the data transfer network

- renovate traditional switched networks

- deploy digital television

- offer specific solutions for major corporations’ LANs and their long-distance
connections all over France.
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Fixed-line, voice and data services outside France

This includes businesses outside France as operator of fixed-line services, wireless
services not included in Orange, as well as worldwide corporate services.

Year end December 31

2001 2000 2000 01/00 01/00

pro torme historical pro lorma hlatorical

(EUR bn) {EUR bn} {(EUR bn) (%) (%)

Revenues 7382 6,988 5,336 5.6% 24,4%
EBITDA (1) 1,165 1,235 1,044 (5.7)% 11,6%
Current operating income (2) ~250 -12 -29 ns ns
CAPEX 1,906 2.680 2,338 (29,1)% (18,5)%

(1) EBITDA: curmings before interest, axand D & A
(2) Operating income before specific and special items, net depreciation and non-recurring tems

On a pro forma basis the growth in revenues for the “fixed-line, voice and data services
outside France” segment rose by 5.6%, due mainly to the expansion of fixed-line
services in Spain with Uni2. .

EBITDA for the segment recorded growth of 11.6% on a historical basis compared with
2000 (up 121 million euras). This growth was due mainly to variations in the
consolidation scope, such as the change in the proportional rate of consolidafion of
ECMS, which rose from 46.1% to 71.25% between the two years and the total
consolidation of Equant NV from July 1, 2001.

On a pro forma basis E3ITDA dropped —5.7%.

CAPEX for fixed-line, voice and data services oulside France was down 18.5% in the
year 2001, This reduction is explained mainly by the work carried out in 2000 to expand
subsidiaries’ infrastructure in cable (Casema in the Netherlands) and fixed-line (Uni2 in
Spain) networks. Investments made by Teiecom Argentina in 2001 are aiso down in
comparison with the previous year. This decrease is partially offset by the impact of
Equant NV's entry into consolidation as well as investments in the roll-out of France
Telecom's international network. The reduction is nearly 29% on a pro forma basis.

Pro forma figures have been produced for Equant for 2000 and 2001 so as to compare
the highlights of the group - as constituted at December 31, 2001 - over two full years.

On this basis Equant's revenues increased 12.1% between 2000 and 2001 at 3,06
billion US dollars. Revenues from broadband now represent nearly 95% of network
revenues, the main component of Equant’s revenues.

Equant's EBITDA increased significantly, moving from —178 million dollars in 2000 (pro
forma) to -9 million dollars in 2001, due principally to the improvement in the structure of
netwark costs and the significant drop in marketing costs as a percentage of revenues.
EBITDA was positive in the 4" guarter of 2001, just six months after Equant's merger
with Global One. ‘
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France Telecom is one of the world's leading telecommunications carriers, with over 91
million customers on the five continents (220 countries and territories) and consolidated
operating revenues of 43 billion Euro for 2001, Through its major international brands,
including Orange, Wanadoo, Equant and GlobeCast, France Telecom provides
businesses, consumers and other carriers with a complete portfolio of solutions that
spans local, long-gdistance and international telephony, wireless, internet, multimedia,
data, broadcast and cable TV services.

France Telecom is the second-largest wireless operator and the number three Internet
access provider in Europe, and a world leader in telecommunications solutions for
multinational corporations. France Telecom (NYSE: FTE) is listed on the Paris and New
York stock exchanges.

This document contains forward-looking statements, including without limitation the statements in
the “Outiook” section. Although France Telecom believes its expectations are based on
reasonable assumptions, these forward-looking statements are subject to numerous risks and
uncertainties. Important factors that could cause actual results to differ materially from the results
anlicipated in the forward-looking statements include, among other things: the effects of
compelition; telecommunications usage levels; the avaiability, terms and deployment of capital
for France Telecom; genaral economic and market conditions, particularly with respect to the
telecommunications sector; the effect and outcome of UMTS ficensing, roll out and performance;
and the factors listed in tfem 3 of its Annual Report on Form 20-F, filed with the U.S. Securities
and Exchange Commission on May 28, 2001, The forward-looking statements contained in this
document speak only as of the date of this document and France Telecom does not unidertake to
update any forward-looking statement to reffect events or circumstances after the date hereof or
to reffect the occurrence of unanticipated events,

Press contacts
Nilou du Castel Tel: +33 (0)1 44 44 93 93
Head of the Press Office

nilou.ducastel@francetelecom.com

Emilie Richer Tel: +33 (0)1 44 44 93 93
emilie.richer@francetelecom.com
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FRANCE TELECOM

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Avertissement

Cette traduction anglaise des comptes consolidés rédigés en lungue francaise a é1é
préparée pour le confort des lecteurs anglophones. Malgré tout le soin apporté & cette
traduction, certaines erreurs, omissions ou approximations peuvent y subsister. France
Télécom, ses représentants et ses saluriés n'en assumeront aucune responsabilité.

Disclaimer

This English fanguage translation of the consolidated financial statements prepared in
French has been prepared solely for the convenience of English speaking readers.
Despite all the efforis devoted (o this translation, certain errors, omissions or
approximations may subsist. France Telecom, its representatives and employees decline
* all responsability in this regard.
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Cunsolidated statements of income for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Consolidated balance sheets at Deccmber 31 2001, 2000 and 1999

Consolidated statements of changes in sharcholders’ equity for the years ended December 31,
2001,.2000 and 1999

Consolidalted statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999

Notes to the consolidated financial statements

note | -  Description of business

note 2 -  Summary of significant accounting policies
notc 3 - Main acquisitions and divestitures of companics
note 4 - Goodwill in consolidated invesuments

note 5-  Other intangible assets

note 6 - Plant, property and equipment

note 7 - Investments accounted for using the equily method
note 8 - Other investment securitics and related reccivables
note 9-  Trade accouns receivable, less allowances

notc 10 - Prepaid expenses and other current assets

note 11 - Deferred income

notc 12 - Net borrowings

note 13 - Convertible and exchangeable notes

note 14 - Other long-term borrowings

notc 15 - Other short-lerm borrowings

note 16 - Exposure to market risks

note 17 - Fair value of financial instruments

note 18 - Pcnsion plans and other long-term liabilitics
pote {9 - Other current lisbilities

note 20 - Minority intcrests

note 2! - Shareholders’ equity

not¢ 22 - Segment information

notc 23 - Personncl costs

notc 24 - Special items, net

—
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note 25 - Other non-operating income (expensc), nct
note 26 - Income 1axes

note 27 - Related party ransactions

note 28 - Commitments and contingencies

note 29 - Litigativn and claims

note 30 - Subsequent events

note 31 - Compensation of the Board of directors and the Executive Management Committee

note 32 - List of consolidated companics and afTiliates at December 31,2001
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FRANCE TELECOM
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME

(in millions of euros, except per share dala)

Note Year ended December 31,
2001 2000 1999
Sales of services and preducts 43 026 33674 27 233
L
Cas! of services and products sold (17 619) {12 733) {9 686)
~ Scliing. general and administrative expenses (12 520) (9 685) (7 341)
Regearch and development expenses {567) (449) (593)
EBITDA (1) ) 12320 10 807 9613
Depraciation and amomtizalion {goodwill ¢xcluded) (6 310) (5 726) (4 8885)
Operating incame before special items, net 22 5410 5081 4728
Special items, net 24 (210) (225) (238)
Operating income 5 200 4 856 , 4 499
Intarest expense, net 12 (3847) (2 606) {662}
Exchange gains/(losses), net (337) (141) (20)
Discounting of earily rellrement liability 18 (229) (237) (198)
Other non.operating incomel{expense), et 25 (5 304) 3957 787
Ingome taxes 26 2932 (1313) (1797)
Employees profit-sharing {131) (141) (135}
Equity in net income/ (loss) of affiliates 7 (890) {275) 259
Income/(loss) bafore goodwlll amortization and minority interests (3 2086) 4700 2706
Goodwlli amortizalion a-7 (2 §31) (1092) {128)
Exceptional goodwill amortization 4-7 (3257) - .
Minority inlerests 20 714 52 198
Net Incomel/(loss) {8 280) 3 660 2768

(1) EBITDA : operaling income bofore specfal tems, nel and depréciatton and amartization

Earnings/ (lo3s) per shere

income! (loss) belore goodwill amortization and minorily interosts

- basic (2.91) 4.41 284

- dituted (291) 4,33 2.60
Net income/(loss)

- basic (7.51) 3.44 270

- diluted (7.51) 3.38 266

See Noles to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FRANCE TELECOM
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

{in millions of gures)

Note Al December 31,
2001 2000 1999
ASSETS
Goodwill, nay 4 34 963 36 049 1208
Othetinlangible ascets, net 5 18189 16 289 925
Plgnt, property and equipment, net 6 31728 34623 28 964
{nvesiments accaunied for using the cquity method 7 8912 10 506 1066
Invesiment securilles, het 8 3240 10218 5673
Other long-larm asscls, hel 9 1936 722 443
Deferred income taxes, net 26 5 363 2522 2 285
Total long-teym assets 104 337 110 939 40 562
inveniories 900 1216 821
Trade accounis receivable, less allowances { 1 475 in 2001 9 7 596 8783 6084
1 406 in 2000 and 1 137 in 1999) .
Deferred income taxes. nct 26 1102 1608 677
Prepaid expenses and ofher currenl assels 10 6 653 4782 2676
Receivable from divesiment of real eslate § 2669 . .
Markalable securities 12 1138 216 211
____Cash and cash equivalents 12 2943 2040 2424
Total currant assets 23 021 19 649 13 493
TOTAL AGSETS 127 358 129 585 54 055
LIABILIT.EES AND SHAREHOLDERS" EQUITY
Share capital of 1 153 831 943 shares (€ 4 par vaiue) 4815 4615 4098
Additional paid-in capital 24 228 24 228 6 628
Relalned earnings 4882 2748 5285
Nelincome (l033) for the ysar (8 280) 3860 2768
Foreign currency transtation adjusimeant Baa 58 153
Qwn shares {5002) (2 153) -
Shareholders’ equity 21 21 087 33 157 18 303
Minorily interests 20 8 101 2038 1369
Converible and exchangsable noles 13 10 750 2883 2654
Qther long and medium lerm inanclal borrowings 14 43792 27 §94 9579
Qlhar long lerm llebiilies 18 8 663 § 220 4182
Total fong-ferm hLiabilitles g3 206 35767 16 415
Current portion ol long and medium term korrowings 14 1596 7542 2551
Bank overdrafts and other shorslem borrowings 15 11 285 25 185 2479
Trode aceounts payable 8621 7618 5330
Accrued cxpenses and other payublcs 7 258 7728 4 208
Other current liabfilies 19 2481 8113 1175
Deferred income laxes 26 374 $12 495
Delerred ingome 11 3258 7948 1130
Total current liablilties 34 964 58 625 17 368
127 358 129 585 54 055

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

See Notes lo Consolidated Financlal Stalements
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TF'RANCE TELECOM

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

(in milions of &yros excepl per share daia)

Number Shara Additional  Relainod Fartrn Own Total
of capiral paid-in earnings currency shares

shares capital transiatien

issved adfustmen!
Al January 1, 1999 1024614 561 3805 6 629 6472 (15) 0 16 991
Nal lnoorné for the year 1939 2788 2768
Incresse in capilal (note 21} ) 1340 183 {193) ¢
Movements in holdings of own shares 1 1
Appropriation of acl Incorme 11 025) {1.025)
Translauon agjustment 168 163
Balance al December 31, 1989 1024615907 4088 6528 8023 153 0 18 903
Ne{ income for the year 2000 3860 3880
Irercase in capital (note 21) 129 216 042 817 17 598 18 116
Movemenis in hoidings of own shares (nole 21) (2 153) 2 153)
Adjustment on Orange plc acquisition ¢ost {nole 3) 14 335) {a 335)
Approprialion of net incoms {1 025) (1 028)
Translalon adjusiment (94) (84}
COither movements 85 85_
Balance al December 31, 2000 1157 831 943 g_§1_5___ 24228 £408 59 {2 153) 33157
Notinearmne for the year 2001 {8 280) (8 280)
Movemenis in holalngs of own shares (nole 21) {(1271) (2 849) (4 120)
Appropriation of net incama (1078) (1079
Transialion adjustment 788 785
Other movements (noie 7) 620 670
Balance 3{ December 31, 2001 1 753_83‘( 943 4818 24 228 (3 598) 844 {5 002) 21087

See Notas 1o Consolidated Financial Stalemems
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FRANCE TELECOM
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOW

(in mittion's of curcs)

Note Year ended December 31
2001 2000 1999
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Netincomei(lass) (8 280) 3660 2768
Adfustments to raconcle net income/(toss) to funds generated from operations
Depreciation & amortization of property, planl & equipment and imangible assels 12 698 6318 5021
Gain on divestment of real eslate 25 (705) . .
Result on divesiment of other tangible and intangibls assels (92) (23) 2
Resulon divesimart of other assets 25 (2 093) (7677) (598)
Charnigas in valuation allowances end olhar provisions s 7 860 4113 7%
Undistributed earnings of affiliates 841 276 82
Deferred income laxes 26 (2 080) (277) 297
Minorily interests 20 (714) 52) {198)
Qther ilams (18} 25 29
Funds generaled from gperations 7 406 6863 7 482
Decreasa (increase) in invenlories an {329) (176)
Decrease (increasc) in (rade acgounts reccivable (628) (978) (760)
Securiization of receivables 9 914 - .
Decrease {increasc) (n olher current assets {1974) (1372) (669}
Impact of sal of carry back recoivables 26 (1111) . -
Incraase (decrease) in rade accounts payable (588) 938 1084
Increase (decrease) in other fiabililies 2026 1493 1167
Impact of sales of (uture recelvables 18 §90 - -
Qther changes in current assels and fiabilities {330) (250) 527
Net cash p¥ovided by operating activilias 7 078 6 613 8109
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property, plant. and equipment ard Iniangible assets 5.6 (8553} (14 313) (5 001}
Proceeds from sale of property, plant, and egulpment and inlangible 298 274 150
Cash paid for Orange plc 3 - (21 692) -
Purchase of own shares {Orange pic acquisition) 3 (8 807) - -
Orange SA IPO proceeds. 3 102 - .
Cash paid for invesiments securities and acquired businesses, het of
cash acquired 3 1 071) {10 899) (2 502)
Invesiments in affiliates 7 {3 264) {7 969) (302)
Proceeds from salc of invesimenl securitles and businesses, nct of cash
sold 3-8 4524 7930 720
Decrease (increase) in marketable securilies and other long-term assels (31) (218) 288
Net cash used in investing activities {10 824} (46 888) (8 647)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Issudnice of long-tarm debl 12 37 244 21528 1088
Repaymeni of lorg-term debt 12 (18 174) (3 229) (2 389)
hcrease (decrease) (n bank overdrafis and short-lorm borrowings 12 (13 556) 21002 1092
UMTS vendor financing 78 234 - -
Mingnity interest sharaholder conltributions 181 1847 199
Dividends paid lo minority shareholders 20 (128) (213) ()
Appropriatian ol net Income {1 075) {1 025) (1 025)
Net casti Used In financing aclivilies 4726 39910 {1 108)
Net increase (decraase) in cash and cash eguivalents 978 (365) 356
Ef(ccl of changes m gxchange rales on cash and cash equivalents (75) {19) 26
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 2 040 2424 2042
Cash_and casgh equivalenis at end of perlad 2943 2 040 2424
Supplementary disclosures
Cazh paid.during the pericd for:
. Interes! (3 695) 2132) (1001)
. \ncome 13xes {610} 1 771) (1 108)

Sce Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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FRANCE TELECOM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAU STATEMEN'TS

December 31, 2001

L. DESCRIPTION OF BUSINESS

France Telscom group («France Telecom») with notably its
publicly listed subsidiarics Orange, Wanadoo and Equunt, is one
of the };};iding telecommunications operators in the world and is
tht principal relecommunications operator in France. France
Tcleeomn  provides  consumers,  businesses and  other
telecommunication carriers with a wide range of scrvices
including fixed line and mobile iclecommunications, data
iransmission, Internct and multimedia, brosdcasting and other

value added services.

2, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

!
Thy consolidated financial statements of France Telecom are
prepered in  accordance with French gencrally accepred
accounting principles under rule 99-02 of the Comité de la
Réglementation Comprable (CRC).

France Telecom hias revicwed provisions recorded at December
31, 2001 and deoes not anticipatc sny significant impact with
respeet 1o the first application on January 1, 2002 of rule CRC
00-06 on liabilities.

Presentation of the financial statements

I'nc conmsolidated balance sheet, stalement of incomc snd

statement of cash flows arc prepared in Euros.

¢ EBITDA represents operating income before special items,
n¢t and before depreciation and amortization,

e Operating income before special items, net is presented
separately.

» QOperating income represents the  difference between
operating revenues and charges. It includes specific non.
recuming items, recorded tnder the heading aSpecial items,
nets within Operating [ncome,

¢ [he costs resulting both from the discounting of the Feench
varly retirement plan and from the French legal regime of
cmployee profil sharing sre presented as a separate line item
in the consolidated statement of income afler Operating

<
Income,

»  the «Other non-operating incoma/{expense). nets rolates

mainty to gains and losscs on,_the dispusal of consolidated

subsidiarics and investment securitics including dilution
resulls and the change in provisions against invesumcnt
securities and markctable secusities, dividends received, and
movements in restructuring provisions, This heading also
includes results on disposals where their relative size
exceeds ordinary sctivity (real cstate, commercial
receivables. ..).

»  The govdwill amortization charge relutes to the goodwill of
fully and proportionally consolidated compunies a3 well 9%
investments sccounted for under the cquity method.

¢ The baiancc sheet classifies assets and lisbilities based on
liquidity or maturity Jates, and presents shori-term balances
(duc within ene year) separately from lung-term balances.

*  The statement of cash flows excludes from changes in cash
thosc changes in bank overdrafts and marketable securitics
having muturities in excess of threc months at the time of
purchase, which ure presented as financing and investing

activities.

Moreover, in order 10 ensure comparability of the 2001 financial
statements with those of prior years, specific headings have been
introduced on the face of the balance shcer and ststement of
income at December 31, 2001 in order to reflect dircctly (i) the
receivable from the sale of real estate (Note 6) and (i) the
exceptional goodwill smortization.

Principles of consolidation

The main cunsolidation principles are as follows:

= Companics which are wholly owned or which Frunce
Telecom controls, cither direcdy or indirectly, are fully
consolidated;

»  Compahies in which France Telecom and a limited number
of other sharcholders vxcreise joiin control are accounted
for using the proportionale consolidation method;

¢ Compunies over which France Telecom exerciscs
significant influcnce but dees ot control (generally a 20%
to 50% controlling intorest), arc accounted for under the
equity method:

»  Maicrial inter-compaily balancss and lrsnsactions are
climinated. '
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FRANCE TELECOM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001

Translation of financial siatements of foreign subsidiaries

The financial statements of forcign subsidiaries in a non Euro
functional currency, except for those in countrics with hyper-
inflationary cuonomies, are translated into Euros as follows:

s asscts and liabilitics are transiated at the year-cad rate,

e jtems in the statement of incaine arc translalcd al the
average rate for the year,

o the translation adjustment resulting from the use of these
different rates is included as a separatc cumponent of
shareholders’ cquity.

The financial statemncnes of the Argeatinean subsidiarics have
been converted under the terms of the CNC (Conseil National de
lu Compiabilité) annovncement of January 18, 2002 reluting to
the aceounting consequences of the dovalugtion of the
Argentincan peso, Balance sheet items, revenucs and expenses
trom significant operations from December 21, the daie on which
the Argentinean peso ceased to be quoted, to December 31, 2001
have been convericd vsing u rute of 1.65 pesos for | Evro.

The local currency financial stawements of foreign subsidiarics

operating in countrics with hyper-inflationary cconomics are

remneasured into their functional currency, prioT to converting 10

Liuro, using the following method:

« monctary clements of the balance sheet are translated at the
closing rate:

e  non-monefary elements are converted at the historical rate;

« ilerns in the statement of income are translated ar the
gverage rate for the year except for deprecialion and
amortiration charges which arc translated at the historical
rate;

o the translation adjustment resoliing fram the use of these

different ratcs 15 recorded tn the income statcinent as an

exchange gain or loss.

The financial statements of subsidiaries remeasured as described
above arc then translated into Euro using the method applied to
all forcign subsidiuries of France (efecom.

Transactions in forcign curirencies

At yearend, foreign currency denominated monetary balances,
except for those hedged by cumency swap contracls, are
iranslated at closing exchange rates.

Unrealized gains and [osses on foreign currency denominated
balances, except for those hedged by currency swap agrecments
and fur those anising on Habilities cffemive‘ly hedged by assets in
the same currency, are recognized in the statement of income for
the period.

Revenue recognition

France Telecom’s principal sources of revenue arc
recognized as follows:

¢ Revenues from (elephone subscriptions or Internet access
are rccognized on 3 straight-linc basis over the invoicing
penod,

¢ Revenues from incoming and outgoing traffic are
recognized when the $evvice is rendered.

«  Revenues from sales of telecommunications equipment, net
of point of sales discounts, and connection charges arc
recognized upon dJelivery to the custorner or activation of
the line, as appropriate,

*  Revenues from Iniemet adventising are recognized over the
period that services are provided, Barter transactions are
recorded, only when their value can be determined, and in
this casc arc reeorded at the fair value of the goeds or
services provided or received, whichever is more readily
determinable in the circumstances,

»  Revenues fromm advertiseinents in printed and efectronic
directories are recognized when directories are published.
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FRANCE TELECOM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001

Customer ucquisition costs and loyally cosis

Customer acquisiiion costs and oyalty costs relating lo mobile
and Internet customers sre expensed as incurred. These costs
consisl Hprincipaﬂly of commissions and rcbawes paid o
distributors,

Advertising costs

Advenising costs are expenscd 35 incurred. Advenising cosls
amounted to € 1,063 million in the year ended Decenber 31,
2001, € 939 million in the year ended December 31, 2000, and
€ 664 million in 1999,

Research and development

Rescarch and development costs are expensed as incurred.

Weh site development cosis

Costs relating to the developinent of web sites are capitalized or
cxpensed depending on the phase of development of siics: custs
relating lo the planning and operating stages are expensed, cosis
related o develepiment and creation of the design are cup\ilalizcd‘

Farnings per share

Ywo types of carnings per shure arc shown: basic camings per
share and diluted earnings per shure. The nunber of shures used
for the calculation of diluted eamings per share tukey into
aecount the conversion into ordinary shares of existing
polentially dilutive mstruments. Diluted camings are calculated

as het result adjusted for the financial charges of dilutive-

insituments, net of their effect on tax and employee profit

sharing.

Owu shares held, when recorded as a reduction in consobidated
sharcholders' cguity, are not included in the calevlation of
curnings ‘per share,

Customer receivables

France Telecom does nol consider itself exposed 10 a
concentration of credit risk with respect to trade accounts
reccivable due (o its large and diverse customer base (residential,
profestional and larpe business customers). Allowances arc
recorded on the basis of an evaluation of the risk of non-recovery
of reccivebles. The allowances are based on an individual or
statistical asscssment of this risk.

Customer rescivables which are sccurtized are removed from the
heading “Tradc accounts receivables, less allowances” when the
rights and obligations attached to such recsivables arc
definitively transferred to third parties, Subordinated shares held
in Fonds cammun de créances as part of thesc Iransactions arc
recorded as "Other long-term asscts, net”. Depreciation of such
shares, determined bascd on the risk of non-recovery of the
receivables divested, is presented as a reduction in “Other long-

term assets, net”,

Cash and cash equivalenis

Cash and cash cyuivalents consist of cesh and highly liquid
invesunenis with maturities generally of three months or lcss at
the time of purchase and are stated at cost, Which approximates
fair value, '

Markerable secyritier

Marketable sccurities arc valued at acquisilion cost. When
necessary, s provisien & recorded on an investment-by-
investment basis to adjust this value 1o the average markel value
over the month prior (o year-end or their estimated trading value
for sceuritics not publicly traded.

Tnventaries

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or probable net
realizable value laking into account nowbly (uture revenue
cxpeoted from new subscriptions arising from mobile handset
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FRANCE TELECOM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001

sales. Cost relalcs to acquisition or production costs and is
generally detenmined using the weighted average method.

Purchase accounting und goodwill

Upan acquisition of a business, the purchasc price is allocated on
a fair valuc basis (o the identifiable asscts and lisbilities of the
business acquired. The fair vajue of identifiable intangible assers
such as trademarks, licenses and customer relationship s
detennined using generally accepted methods such as the income
approach, the cost approach, or the market value approach.

The cxcess of the purchase price over the fair value of the share
of identifiable assets and liabilitics of the business acquired is
recorded in the consolidated balance sheet under the heading
« Goodwill v for fully and proportionally consolidated entitics
and i8 included in the heading « Tavestments accounted for under
the equity method » for entitics over which France Tclecom has a

significant influence.

Goodwill related to foreign companics is recorded as an asset in

their functional currency,

Where there is a partial disposal of shaves in fully or
proportionally consolidated companies, the cost of the assets sold
includes the related portion of goodwill disposed of which is
removed from the balance shect at disposal, be it through a direct
salc in cxchange for ahother asset or through a ditution.

The amortization period for goodwill, vsually ranging from 5 to
20 years, is determined after taking into consideration the
specific nature of the business acquired and the stralegic value of

tach acquisition.

The value in use of goodwill is subject to review when events or
circumstances occur indicating that an impairment may exist.
Such evenrs or circumstances include significant adverse
chunges, other than temporary, in the business cavironment, or in
assuimptions or expectations considercd at the time of the
acquisitiyn, The need to recoynize en impairment charge is
assesscd with reference 1o undiscounted cash flows as cstimated
bascd un prospective cconomic and vperaling sssumptions used
by the management of France Telecom.

Impairment charges are rccorded, where necessary, as the
difference  between net book valuc and fair value, The
recoverable value of the goodwill is assessed with reference to
cash flow projections discounted using appropriate rates and
considering other advantages cxpected at the acquisition date
such as synergies resulting from the integration of the business
with France Telecom’s operations and its stratcgic position for
the group. '

Other intangible assets

Other  intangible assets  include trademarks, customer
relationship, licenses, patents and submarine cable link access
nghts.

Licenses tw operate mnobile networks are recorded at historical
cost and amortirzed on a straight-line basis from the effective date
of commercialization of serviees.

The right to operate, in France, a third generation mobile network
(UMTS) is recorded for the fixed portion payable at the grant of
the license, and this fixed portion i3 smornized an a straight line
basis from the effective datc of commercislization of services.
According to the ruling of the urgent issues task force of the
CNC, the vanable portion (cqual lo 1% of the eligible sales
gencrated by the third generation network) will be recorded as an
operating expense in the penod incurred.

Trademarks and customer relationship are not amortized.
Impaimment is recorded, a3 neocessary, wking into accoumt
operating conditions.

Purchuscs of capacity trangmission on land and submarine cables
(IRUs) arc capitalized and amortized on a straight-line bagis over
the forecast usefol life, Income from sale of IRUs is recorded on
a siraighl-line basis in the statement of incoine over the duration
of the contract.
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FRANCE TELECOM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001

Property, plunt and equipment

Assels transferred from the French Stale on January J, 1991,
upon the creation of France Telecom as # public sector operator,
were recorded in the opening balance sheet at values jointly
approved by the Telecommunications Ministry und the Ministry
of Economy and Findnce,

Since that date, property, plant and squipment are recorded at
historical cost of acguisition or 2t construction cost. Cost of
networks includes planning and construction costs, us well as site
installation and equipment upgrade costs.

Interest arising from debt incurred to finance construction and
development of assets is, from Januacy |, 2000, capitalized as
part of the cost of such assets during the construction period.

Repairs and muintenance costs, except to Lhe extent that they
increase productivity or extend the useful life of an asset, ure

cxpensed a3 incurred.

Leased assets are recorded as an acquisition of an asset end the
incumrence of a financial debt when the lease wnns cffcetively
transftr the risks and rewards of ownership of the assct tu France
Telecom. Equally, where France Telecom transfers the risks and
rewards of ownership to a third party through a lease contract,
this is accounted for as a disposal.

Depreciation of propenty, plant and equipment is measurcd on &
straight-line basis over the following estimarted useful lives :

Buildings and leasehold improvements 1010 30 ycars

Swilching, ransmission squipment and other 5 0 10 years
neiwork eguipiment
- 1
Cables and public infrustructure 15 to 20 years
Computers and software {excluding network) 310 5 years
31014 yearx

_Other

Investmeni subsidies

France Telccom msy receive non-repayable investment subsidies
in the form of capitel projects funded directly or indircetly by
theed partics, pritnarily local and regional governments. Subsidics
are recorded as a reduction of the cost of the asscts (inanced and,

.- s

consequently, are recognized in income over the estimated useful
lives of the corresponding assets,

Impairment of long-lived assets

Plant, propesty and equipment und intangible assets are wrilten

down when, as a result of cvents or changes in circumstances.

their recovérable value appears to be permanently less than their
carrying valuc,

e  For assets to be held and uscd, impairment is principally
determined for cach group of asscts by comparing their
carrying value with the undiscounted cash flows they are
expected to generate based upon manugement's expecations
of future cconomic and aperating conditions.

Where necessary, impainment of these asscts is recorded as
the difference berween camrying value and fair value. Fair
vafue iy detenmined on the basis of discounted cash flows or
by reference w replacement cost for used equipment, cost of
alternative technologies or recent transactions for similar
businesscs, or market prices.

»  Assets to be disposed of are written down to their fair valug,
less costs of disposal, when such value is Jower than their
carrying value.

Invesiment securities

Investment securities are stated at cost, including any wssociated
dir¢et costs. An allowance is recorded when the value in use,
bascd upon management's analysis, spptars to be penmancntly
less than carrying value, on the basis of different criteria such as
market value, the outlook for development and profitability, and '
the level of shareholders’ equity, and taking into account the
specific nature of each investiment.

Page 24 of 74




FRANCE TELECOM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001

Deferred income 1axes

Deferred income taxes arc recorded on all temporary differences
berween the carrying amounts of assels and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for tax
purposes, as well as thosc arising from loss carry forwards,
Deferted tax assets are provided for to the extent that the
recovery of these txes is ot considored probuble.

France Telecom uses the liubility method under which deferred
taxes are measured applying the tax rales enacted at the end of
the accounting period, as spplicable at the time the temporary
difference is cxpected to reverse, Where significant, deferred tax
asscts and Jiabilitics are discounted when reversals osn be
reliably scheduled.

Deht issuance costs

Lebt issuance costs are amortized over the term of the relared
debr instrament since January 1, 2000,

Purchase of own shares

Own shares held by France Telecom arc reflected in the
consolidared bulunce sheet at their acquisision cost as a reduction
in sharcholders’ cquity except for those held in share price
stabilization transactions, which arc recorded as marketable
securities. Gains and losscs on disposals of such shares, including
related taxes are recorded within sharcholders’ equity, net of tax,
Allowances recorded against own share$ held within investment
sceurities in the siogle company financial stutements of France
Teletomn, as well as provisions for risk reluting to commiunents
(o repurchasc own shares, are climinuted on consolidation.

Commitiments 1o rcpurchase gwn shares, set out in Note 28, are
reoorded 35 an off balance sheet commitment until the
repurchase,

Derivotive financial instruments

France Telecom Inmanages inlterest rate and foreign currency risks
using derivaiive financial instruments including intercst rate
swaps, interest rate cap and floor contracts, foreign exchange
futures contracts oi organized forward markcts, currency swaps
and currency options. AHl such instruments are entered into (or

hedging purposes.

Income and costs resulting from the use of these instruments are
recorded in the consolidated statement of income on 2
symmetrical basis with the underlying transaction being hedged:

«  Differences berween intercst receivable and interest payable
onh swaps, caps and floor contracts designated as hedges, as
well as premiums paid for these operations or discounts, are
recorded in the consolidated stateiment of income vver the
lifc of the contract a$ an adjustment to intercst cXpensc;

« Initial differences between the negotiated term rate and the
fixing rate for the day on forward exchange contracts and
currency swaps dosignated as hedging operations are
vrecorded in income over the life of the coatract as an
adjusument 1o interest cxpense, Subsequent gains and losses
generated on thesc contracts due to fluctuations in exchange
rates are recarded as cxchange rate corrections resulting
from the item hedged;

= Gains and losses arising on coatracts designated as hedges
of identifiable firm commitments or ideatifiable funure
transactions arc deferred snd taken into account in the
valuation of the transaction at maturity.

Ceruain operations do not qualily for avcounting purpeses as
hedging, operations under France Telecom’s policy. Derivative
fimnclal instruments which do not qualify for accounting
purposcs as hedging operations relate mainly 1o operations
related to managemnent of short-term debt (the Buribor 3 month
future contract and rate collsrs). Such operations are eveluated as
follows:

s For operations on organized markets, margiv calls ace
reeorded direetly in the stateinent of income,
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FRANCE TELECOM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31, 2001

¢ Net unrealized losses, calculated on instrumnents
negotiatcd over the counter, arc fully provided for.

»  Unrcalized gains on instruments ncgotiated over the
counter are recorded upon unwinding of the position.

Pension plon for French civil servants

Civil servants employed by Frunce Telecom are cligible to
reecive retirement benelits from the civil servant and military
personnel defined bencfit pension plan, which is administered by
the French State.

The «France Telecom Laws (FT law) (French law n®96-660 of
July 26, 1996) states that Frunce Telecom’s obligation is limited
(v a defined annual contribution, As a rusult, France Telecom has
uu additional liability cither for shortfalls that might arise in the
pension plsn tor its civil servant cmployees. or for plans of other
civil servants.

Early retirement plan for French civil servants

n accordance with the «FT lawn, France Telecoim has introduced
an curly retirement plan for civil servants and other employecs,
‘The plan provides that uncil December 31, 2006, civil servants
snu other employees working for France Telecom who attain the
age of 55 with 25 years survice, may clect for catly retirement.
Between carly retirement age of 55 and nonnal retirement age of
GO, participants will receive 70% of théir salary. Tn addition,
participants receive a lump suin indemnity, which amounts to
anc yuar of carly retircinent salary if they elect for carly
retirement at the age of 55, and which declines progressively to
sero as the age at which they clect approaches nonmal refirement
age.

A provision corresponding 0 an actuarial incasurernent of the
fiability under this plan has been recorded (Notw 18). Actuarial
assumptions are monitoted and modifizd bascd upon experience.

Changes in gcruarial assurnptions are accounted for from the
anniversary of the plan, in the consolidated starement of income
in (ht year of change, and on a proraia basis over future service

periods until the end of the plan as personnel opt for carly

retiremeiit,

Retirement indemnities and other pension plans

In France, legislation requires that lunp sum relirement
indernnitles bt paid to non-civil scrvant employees based upon
their years of service and compensation &t retirement. The
actuarial cost of this unfunded obligation is charged snnually to
income over the employees” service lives. The effect of changes
in assumptions is accounted for in the consoliduted statcment of
income over the average remaining service life of employees.

British subsidiaries of Orange S.A. and Equant have for cligible
employces  defined  contribution  pension  schemes  and
unapproved retiroment bencfil schemnes financed by third partics.
Contributions to both types of plans arc cxpensed as incurred.

Post-retirement benefity other then pensions

France Telecom has commitments to provide certain additional
post-retircinent benefils such as relephote equipinent, credit card
fees and varions other benefits 1o retirees.

France Telccom recognizes the expected actuarial cost of thesc
post-retirement benefits in the consolidated statement of income
over the service lives of the eligible employees,

The effect of changes in actuarial assumptions is accounted for in
the consolidated statement of income over the average remaining
scrvice lives of emmployses.

Stock subscription plans

Shares of subsidiarics issusd upun exercise of subscripiion
options granted w0 cruployees arc reflected as a share capitsl
increase, hased un the exercisc pnice of the options, creating s
dilution result for France Telcoom.

With regard to purchase oplions, u provision is recorded in the
books of the subsidiary o the carent that the acquisition cost of
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the shares purchased to service the exercised options is higher

than the exercise price of the options.

Social charges assumed in connection with the share option plan
are provided for when it is probable that the options will be

exercised.

Use of estimares

The preparation of financisl statcments in conformity with
pencrally accepted sccounting principles requires management 10
inake estimates and assumptions which affect the amounts
reported in the financial statemenis and accompanying notes,
notably with regard to provision for risks, deferved tax assels,
goodwill and investment sccuritics, Actual results could differ

from those estimutes.

3 MAIN ACQUISITIONS AND DIVESTITURES OF
COMPANIES

For the year ended December 31, 2001

Main acquisitions

Lquant

Fallowing the Bxtraordinary General Mecting of Equant on June
27, 2001. and in accordance with the agreement concluded in
November 2000. France Telecom performed the following
\ransactions on June 29, 2001:

«  Acquisition of 67,950,000 Equant cominon shares from
the SITA Foundation in exchange for France T¢lecom
shares al # ratio of 2.2 Equant shares per France
Telecom share, resulting in consideration of € 1,739
-million bused on the share price at June 29, 2001 of
€ 56.3 per share.

« Iovesunent of USS | billion (€ 1,179 million) threugh
subscription for 10 million newly issued Tquant
convertible preference shares; vach preference shure
has the same voting rights us onc Equant common
sharc and will automatically convent into one new

Equant common share five years after the date of
subscription, and

e Contribution to Equant in cxchange for 80,617,348
newly issued Equant common sharcs, of 100% of the
sharc capital of Global One Communications World
Holding B.V. and Global One Communications
Holding B.V. with France Telecom rctaining certain
activitics previously performed by Global One. This
contribution was valued on the basis of dJiscounted
furure cash flows at US$ 5,168 million (€ 6,094
million), including contributed cash amounting to US$
300 million.

As a result of these trapsactivns. France Telecom owned, al June
29, 2001, 54.27% of th¢ combincd company Equant.

Under the terms of the agreement, within 4 twe-ycar perind,
France Tetecom is 1o pay back to Equant:

»  50% of costs related o the preservation of cmi'ﬂuyme»nl
or the cancellation of employmenl contracts for certain
eimployees of the newly combincd vompany Equant -
Global One,

*  Rostructuring and intcgration costs other than those
relaling to cmployees, up to a maximum of USS 210
million,

On the basis of these clements, the preliminary purchase
accounting for Equant at December 31, 2001 is as follows:

(10 ifliqna 6F serd)

Contribution of Global One 6,004

Proceeds from subscription of the 10 million 1,179

Equant preference shares, paid in cash

7213

Minurily interests, corresponding 10 Equant x45.73% 3326
sharcholders

Acquisition of Equant common shares from 1,739
the SITA Foundation
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Restructuring, integration and sasociated 169

4CquisTtion costs

Preliminary acquisition cost $,434
_Vair value of nct assets acquired ) 534
Preliminary poodwill 4,300

Preliminary goudwill in Buros is amortized from July 1, 2001,
over periods of up o 20 years, and amounts to € 4,800 million
(USS 4,071 million). The acquisition and restructuring costs
associated with the acquisition were depreciated in the sccond
half of 2001 (Note 4).

Equant CVRs

On Jly 2, 200!, France Telecoin issued to all Equant
shareholders other than the SITA Foundation and to certain
owners of sharc options and restricted share awards granted by
Hquant befere November 19, 2000, 138,446,013 contingent value
rights ("CVR™. Each CVR gives the hoider the right to receive a
cash payinent, on the third anniversary of the completion of the
Lquant wansaction (June 2004), representing the difference if
ncgative between the average Equant share price for 2 defined
period and € 60, limited to & maximumm of € 15 per share,
Movement in market price in 2001 and in the beginning of 2002
(notably in tenns of EBITDA multiples) has resulted in a8 CYR
market value since issuc corresponding to a payment of the CVR
at mawrity. Whilst considering that the Equant business plan
assumptions remain valid, France Telecomn management
considers that such a payment would not be recovered from the
value in use of the Equant invesunent as derived from the
business plan, As a results of this. Franes Telecom has recorded a
pmvision for the maximum risk. amounting to € 2,077 million
(Nore 18).

TP 54.

Under un agreemen signed on Seplember 5, 2001 beeween the
Polish government and the consortium lead by France Telecom.
France Telecom and Kuleeyk Holding, it« partner in the

consortium, increased their share in TP SA by 8.93% and 3.57%
respectively for a total of PLN 3,656 million (€ 950 million) of
which PLN 2,612 million (€ 679 milliun) were paid by France
Telecom. Following this operation, the consortium holds 47.5%
of TP SA, of which 33.93% is held by France Telecom. The
consortivm holds a call uption for 4 supplementary investment of
2.5% plus onc share. Moreover, put snd call options have been
concluded between Kuleeyk Holding and France Telecom
relating to the participation of Kulczyk Holding in TP SA (Note
28).

The preliminary goodwill relating 1 this complemcntary
investnent amounts 1w € 213 million and is amortized over 20
years from October 1, 2001, The invesiment in TP SA is
accounted for under the equity method (Note 7).

Freeserve

[n December 2000, Wanadou SA rnade un offer (or the entire
share capital of Freeserve, the main [ntemnet services provider in
the United Kingdom. The offer wus carricd out in March 2001 on
the basis of a panity of 0.225 new Wanadoo shares for cach
Freescrve share. The number of shares issued at amounts to
230,069,681, resulting in a purchase price of € 2,078 million.

The resultant goodwill for this operation amounts to € 1,886
miilion and is amonized over a 20-year period from March 1,
2001 (Note 4),

Indice Multimediu

On Dccember 18, 2000, Wanadoo agreed to acquire the entite
shure capita} of Indice Multimedia, the second largest directory
operator in Spain, At the general meeting on March 22, 200! and
in accordance with the agreement, Wanadoo acquired 86.71% of
the capital of Indice Multimedia by issue of 20,325,444 shares
and a cash payment of € 80,5 million, representing an acquisition
cost of € 190 million, The remainder of the capital will be
acquired through options granted both to sharcholders, in cash
when the option is excreised, and also to certain sharcholders, in
cash and in Wanudoo shares at cxercise.
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The acquisition of Indice Multimedia gave risc w goodwill of
€ 318 million being amortized over a 20-year period from April
{,2001 (Note 5).

Wind

On October 11, 2000, France Telecom and ENEL reached an
agreement relating to the acquisition of Infostrada by ENEL and
its commitment to merge Wind and Infostrada.

Under this agreement, and following an extraordinary gener|
mecting on July 30, 2001 which approved a capital increase
rcserved for Enel as a comsideration for the contribution of
Infostrada, France Telecom's intercst was reduced from 43.4% (o
less than 27% in the new eatity, The cffict of this operatien is a
dilution gain of € 934 millian. The merger of Wind and
Infusirada had legal effcct at January 1, 2002,

Morcover, under this agreement, Frunce Tolecom and ENEL
agreed ro make a public offering of 25% of Wind, subject to
market conditions. The agreement includes put and call options
aver Wind shares with ENEL, in favor of France Telecom (Note
28).

He

Orange.SA IPO

In Febrﬁary 2001, France Telecom sold 636 imillion existing
sharcs of Orange SA representing 13.24% of the total number of
exisling shares and vouing rights in Orange SA, through a public
offer to private and institutional investors as well #s cmployces,
The net procecds from these offers amounted 10 € 6.1 billion.

Since February 13, 2001, Orange SA shares have been listed on
the Premier Marché of Euronext Paris SA &end on thc London
Stock Exchange. This operation has no materis]l impact on
consolidated income before tax at Deccinber 31, 2001, a5 5
provision of € 1.773 million to cover the expecled loss was
recorded in the finaacial statements at December 3, 2000,

Following this offering and the transfer 1o £.On of 102.7 million
shares of Orange SA as a consideration for 42.5% of Orange
Communications SA, acquired in November 2000, Frunce
‘Telecom owns 84.4% of Orunge SA (MNote 28 commitments
linked fo the acquisition of Orange Lommunications SA).

Main acquisitions and divestments of non consolidated
investments (Note 8)

For ihe year ended December 3/, 2000

Main acquisitions

Orange plc und Orange Communications SA

In May 2000, France Tclecorn, and the Vodafone group signed
anigreemem with effecl August 22, 2000, resulting in (i) the
cash purchase by France Telecom of 664,74 million Orange
shares for € 2).5 billion (i) the contribution by the Vodafonc
group to France Telecom of §44.56 million Orunge ple sharcs in
vxchange for 129.20 million new France Telecom shares, issued
41 € 140.2 per share, with Vedafone renouncing the voting rights
attached to the shares. As a result of this operation, France
Telecom held 100% of the share capital of Qrange ple, France
Telecom immediately vepurchased 15.36 million France Telccom
shares from Vodafone at issue price, such that the Vodafone
group would not hold more than 9.9% of the sharc capital of
France Telecom.

This share purchasc was financed by Frasce Telecom's issuc of a
security of € 2.15 billion with maturity March 2001,

Following the Initial Public Offering (IPO) of Orange SA on
February 13, 2001, Vodafone and France Telecom rcached an
agieement on February 28, 2001, with cespect o the terms of the
buy-back of the outstanding 113.85 million France Telecom
shares held by Vodafonc. 7This transaction represents a
comprehensive setilement of the put and cal) arrangements set up
in August 2001 and fixes the toral price of these shares at
approxitnately € 11.63 billion, Cash payments of € 6.65 billion
were made in March 2001 against delivery by Vodalone of 64.1
millien France Telccom sharcs. A final cash payment of € 4.97
billion is duc on March 25, 2002 against 49.8 million France
Telecom shares (Note 21 and 28).
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On the basis of this agreement, the total acquisition cost of
Oranpe pls amounts on a historic cost basis to € 35,472 million

ay summarized below:

{in millions of euros)

Cash consideration 21,519
Transaction costs, nct of related tax 174
Sub-tutal 21,693
Share consicleration through issuance of

129 201 742 France Telecom shares 18,114
Price udjustment resulting from February 28, 2001

agrecment {4335)
Total purchase price 35,472

The purchase price bas been allocated 1w the following
identifiable asscts and liabilitics:

(in millions of curos)

Purchase price Ban
Fair Value of net assets acquired:
Orunge trademark 4600
Customer relationship h930
GSM license 13
Other a@sels acquired 544
Other Habilitics acquired _ﬂ_ﬂ
6 548
Goodwil 2492
1418

Of which goodwiil allacated to Orange
Commuaications SA.

The purchase price sllocation resulted in an increuse (o net assets
of € 7,621 million, and relates primarily to the Orange trademark,
custoiner relationship and a GSM license not recorded in the
Orange plc consoliduted balance sheet before the acquisition
date. The trademark has been recognized based on the diycounted
value of cost savings equal tw royaltics which would have been
payable to third panties for the use of the trademark, hud Orange
not owired such trademark. The cusidmicr relationship hss been
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valued on a discounted cash flow basis relating to the customers
concentration in Britain at the date of acquisition. These ussets
are not amortized but are subject to a regular impainnent review.

Goodwill arising at acquisition amounting to € 28,924 million is
amortized over 8 20 year period, Following the IPO of Orange in
February 2001, goodwill has been reduced to € 24,345 million,

On November 10, 2000 France Telecom acquired E.On’s 42.5%
shareholding in Orange Communications SA (Switzerland) for
€ 1,299 million of which 75% was scttled through shares of
Orange SA, with put and call arangements (Note 28). This
investment was transferred to Orange. This acquisition increased
the ownership of Orange in Orange Comvnunications SA from
42.5% 10 85%.

This investment, accounted for using the equity method sinte
September 1, 2000, has been fully consolidated from November
1, 2000. Goodwil} arising from the acquisition of the 42.5%
interest amounting to € 1,466 million is amottized over 20 ycars.
Following the IPO of Orange, goodwill has been reduced to
€ 1,234 million.

Global One

In March 2000. France Tclecom acquired Sprint and Deutsche
Telekom’s inlerests in Global One for a total of US$ 3,898
million (€ 4,080 million) generating goodwill of € 3,966 million
amartized over a 20 year period. Following these scquisitions,
Francc Telecom owned 100% of Global One. This investment,
previgusly accounted for using the proportionsate consolidation
method. has been fully consolidated from April 1, 2000, France
Telecorn, holding the entire share capital of Global Onc
following these operations, contributed almost all the uctivities of
Global One in 200! in relation to the Rquant acquisition.
Following this contrbution, goodwill has been reduced
€ 2,346 million at December 31, 2001,

MabilCom

On March 23, 2000, France Tclecom entered inlo a cooperation
framework agreement with MobilCom, a German fixed line
operalor, mobilc and Intcrmet scrvice provider, and MobilCom’s
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founding shareholder, regarding the scquisition of a UMTS
license and the launch of UMTS mobile telecornmunications
setvices in Germany. Pursuant to the agreement, France Telecomn
cxtended a-€ 3,749 million fosn to a comnpany joindy owned by
France Telecom and MobilCom to fund that cunpany’s bid for a
UMTS license. In October 2000, France Telecom comtributed its
share in this company o MobilCom in cxchange for 3 28.5%
equity interest in MobilCom which was subscquently contnibuted
to Orange SA.

In connection with these transuclions, France Telecom,
MobilCom and MobilCom’s founding sharchulder entered into a
coopcration framework agrecment, with notably put and call
option agreements cxercisable under certain conditions (Note
28),

MobilCom has béen accounted for under the cquity method since
Noverpber 1, 2000. Goodwill arising from the acquisition
amounts [ € 2,700 million and was initsally amonized over a 20

year petiod,

Wind

On July 28, 2000, Franve Telecom reached an agreement with
ENEL and Deutsche Telekom to purchase Deutsche Telekoin's
entire 24.5% interest in Wind. France Telecom acquired a 18.9%
sharcholding for € 2.082 million, bringing its ownership of Wind
t0 43.4%, with ENEL owning the remaining 56.6%.

Wind is accounted for under the cquity mcthod and the
preliminary goodwill arising from the acquisition of lhe
additional 18.9% amounts to € 1,994 million and is amortized
over 20 years, Following the finalization of the purchasc price
allocation exercise in 2001, goadwill arnounts to € 1,523 million
belore the [nfostrada contribution,

TP 54

In October 2000, following an agreement between the Polish
governinent and » consortivm Jed by France Telecon, France
Telecom acquired 25% and Kulezyk [folding, its partner in the
consortium, acquired 10% of the share  capital  of
Telckoimunikacjs Polska SA (TP SA), Poland’s stute-pwned

telecommunications operator, for (otal consideration of € 4.5
billien, of which France Telecom contributed € 3.4 billion.
Preliminary goodwill arising from the acquisition amounts o €
2,701 illion and is amortized gver 20 years since October 1,
2000.

This investment has been accounted for under the cquity method
since Qctober 1, 2000.

JTC

In January 2000, the consormium composed: of France Telecom
and the Arab Bank of Jordan reachcd an agrecment with the
Jordanian govermiment over the acquisition of 40% of the capital
of the Jordanian tclecommunications operalor, Jordun
Telecommunications Company (JTC), for USS 508 million
(€ 510 million). This acquisition way made through a holding
company, Jitco, held 88% by France Telccom and 12% by the
Arab Bank of Jordan. Goodwill amounts to € 342 million und is
amortized over 15 years. This investment has been
proportionately conselidated rom Junuary 1. 2000,

Wanadoo IPO

On July 19, 2000, France Telecom carricd out an IPO of its
newly created wholly owned subsidiary Wanadoo with a listing
on Euronext Paris. Approximatcly 0% of the outstanding shares
of Wanadoo were listed through the issuance by Wanadoo of
new shures and the sale by France Telecon of existing shaures,
The procceds from the offering amounted to approximately € 2
billion, This 1PQ was lollowed in Qctober 2000 by Wanadoo's
purchase of minority interests in France Telecom laternct
subsidiaries in Spain and in the Netherlands in exchange for
newly issued Wanadoo shares. The effect of these two
transactions resulted in an after tax gain in 2000 of € 1,952
million. As a result of these transactions, France Telecom's
interest in Wanadoo has decreased to 88.64%,

Far the yoar ended December 31, 1999

Main acquisitions
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In August 1999, France Telecorn and Telecom Italia increased
their invesonent in the consortium Nortel Inversora, which
controls the Argentine operator Tclecom Argentina, by jointly
acquiring an additional 35% of voting rights for US$ 265 million
(€ 249 million) cuch. Following this transaction, France Telecom
and Tzlecom Italia cach control 50% of the voting rights of the
consortium. This investment has beea accounted for using the
proportional consolidation method from September {, 1999 to
December 21, 2001, The goodwill urising from this acquisition
amounted to € 190 million, and was initially amortized over 15

years,

4. GOODWILL IN CONSOLIDATED INVESTMENTS

Main goodwill arising from fully or proportionaicly consolidatcd
investments is as follows:

At December 31,
2001 ' 2000
Cost''  Accumul Netbook Net book
ated valne value
amortiza
tion
~{in millions of curos)
Orange
Orange PCS 23,435 (1,563) 21870 27,047
Qrange Communications 2,554 53) 2,401 2,448
SA (Swiczerland)
Other Orangze 567 (348) 219 496
Equant / Globa! One
Equant 4619 (546) 4,073 -
Global One 2,347 (18D 2.166 3,833
Other Lquuny Global 85 (34) 51 16
Onc
Wanadoo
Freeserve 1.980 (82) 1.898
Indice Multimedia 323 (12) al
Waunadoo Espuiia 328 81) 247 a6
Pages Jaunca 319 (50) 263 279
Qtlier Wanadoo 39 (130) 189 217
Other 1,724 (449) 1,275 997
Total 38,600 (3.637) 34,963 36,049

' Goodwill denominuted in foreign currency is wunslated at the closing
fate.

France Televom asscsses the valuc in use of Orange PUS and
Orange Cominunicutions SA at the level of the segment resulting
from the regrouping of Orange ple and the mobile activities
formerly held by France Telecom.
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Due to the inicgration of Global One within Equant, France
Tclecom assesses their value in usc on a joint basis, taking into
nccount their strategic value for the group.

The value in use of Freeserve and Wanadoo Espana as well as
Puges Jaunes and Indice Multimedia take into account their
strategic value within Wanadoo's intemet and directories

businesses respectively.

Movements in net book value of goodwill is as follows:

200} 2000 199%
(in millions of euros)
Opening balance 36,049 1,206 872
» Acquisitions 8,027 35,757 a6t
= Divestitures {6,489) - 0]
- Amonization (2,199 (966) (136)
= Exceprional amortization (360)
¢ Translation adjustment 296 4 19
» Reclassification (165) 48
Closing balunce 34,963 36.049 1.206

The cffect of the main acquisitions 1§ sct out in note 3.

Divestments relate to the decrease in goodwill generated by the
IPO of Orange and Global One's contribution to Equant.

In 2001, the goodwill amortization charge includes € 1.2 billion
relating to Orange PCS and € 365 million relating to Equant and
Global One and, in 2000, € 458 million relating to Orange PCS
for the period from September 1 o Docember 31 and € 251
million for Global One,

Cxceptional goodwill amortization in 2001 rclates to Ananova
and Wildfire (€ 211 million) and to the restructuring and other
related costs for the new Equant catity (€ 349 million) included
in the acquisition cost,

Translation adjustments result mainly from the recording in
toreign currency of goodwill relating to non Euro zone

companies.

5. OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

At December 31,
2001 2000
Cost Accumul  Ne(book Net bonk
ated value value
(in millions of euros) deprecla
tion
Tclecommunications
licenses 9,548 (254) 9,304 $,236
Pateats and rights of
wse 1,145 (363) 782 761
Trademarks 5,051 (86) 4,965 4,602
Market share 2,688 - 2,688 2,195
Other intangible assets
39 (369) 450 495
Total 19,251 (1,062) 18,189 16,289

Movements in the net book valoe of other intangible assets is as

follows:
2001 2000 1999
_{in millions of curos)
Opening balance 16,289 925 645
e Acquisidons of intangible 1,169 7,368 166
asscts
o Cffect of acquisitions and T16 8,573 171
divestitures
¢ Divestmens 1) (14) -
* Amonrtization and provisions (382) (214) (62)
* Reclassificstion 76 ((6) (14)
o Transhation sdjustment 352 {333) 19
Clusini balance 18,185 16,289 925

«Telccommunications leenses» relales primarily to operating
licenses of mobile ncrworks, in particular the payments paid for
the granting of UMTS licenscs:

(i) i 2001, in France for € 619 million (fixed payment exciuding
associated costs). The duration of this license is 20 years.

(i) i 2000, in the United Kingdom for € 6.6 billion and in the
Netherlands for € 436 million,
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«Patents and rights of usen relate mainly to patents and cable
usage righis .

«Trademarksn and «Customer relationship» relete mainly to the
Orange trademark and the Orange customer relationship in the
United Kingdom resulting from the purchasc price allocation of
Orange ple {Note 3). The Global One trademurk was depreciated
in 2001,

0. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

At Decemiber 31,

2001 2000
Cost Accumu) Netbook Net book
ated value valoe
deprecia
tion
(in_millions of eurss)
Land and byildings 11,498 (5.197) 6,301 8348
Switching and
\ransmission 24217 (16.963) 7254 7,285
tyuipment
Cables and public 20,250  (11.789) 8461 9,055
infrastructure h

Other network

cquipment 98T (0.822) 5365 A7

Computer and
werininal equipment
7,038 {4.500) 3,138 32

Motor vehicles and 2,737 (1.528) 1,209 2,097
other

Total 75527  (43,7%9) 31,728 34,623

~ Changes in the net book vatue of property, plant and equipment
are as follows:

001 2000 1999
_(in miltions of euros)
Opening balunce 33623 28 964 26577
* Acquisitions of plant,
7811 6993 4835

properry and cquipment

= Effect of acquisitions and
(1 60S) 4210 21323

diveatitures
o Sale of real ¢state (1 963) -
» Dthee reticements and saled (288) (237) (asn

» Depreciation expense
(6613) (5509 (4 819)

s Rexlassification (428) (70) (25)
+ Translation adjuatment 189 272 224
Closing balancc 31 728 34 623 28 964

In November 2001, France Telecoin concluded a binding
reciprocal agreernent with a consortium of rcal estate investors to
sell 431 office and mixed technical buildings, whereby the
purties commisted to sign notarial deeds by September 30, 2002,
The aotarial deeds were signed on March 12, 2002 for 242
buildings, representing 74.7% of the sales price of the
transaction, and the remaining deeds are to be signed by June 30,
2002 as the administrative issues are scttled. The result on
disposal of the 431 buildings, recorded in "Other receivables”
amounts to € 2.7 billion, of which € 2 billion has been cashed at
March 13, 2002. The gain on disposal, nct of costs, amounts to
€ 705 million, and has been recorded in non-operating result
(Note 25), At the same time Frunce Telecom is comminted to re-
lease through 6-9 year leascs these duildings except for certain
#ssets 10 be vacated in the short-term (Note 28).

In 2001, the eflect of ucquisitions and divestitures relste mainly
(H

(i) the firat consolidation of Lquant NV, for € 699 million,

(ii) the cquity accounting of Nortel/Telecom Argentina, for € 2.7
billon, ’

(iii) the change in the percentage of proportional consolidalion of
LECMS, for € 156 million,
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(iv) the first consolidation of Mauritius Telecom for € 120

million.

In 2000, the cffect of acquisitions and divestitures relate inuinly
to the consolidation of Orange plc for a total of € 2,685 million
and of Orange Communications SA (Switzerland) for a to1al of
¢ 704 iﬂillion, and to Global One (previously accounted for using
\he proportionate consolidation method) for € 444 million.

10 1999, the ¢ffect of acquisitions and divestitures related mainly
lo the proportional consolidation of Telccom Argentina for
(2,278 million.

7. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE
EQUITY METHOD

The carrying values of France Telecom's investments in affiliates

ar¢ as follows (in millions of euros):

Company Principal % coatrol
sctivities at 2001 2000 1999
’ December
31,2001
MobilCem " Telephony 283 0 3687
operator in
SOUPVURU ¢ .- L .
TP SA™ Telephuny 33.9 4552 3441
operaror in
e e Qland
Wind Telephony 206 3349 2011 58
Infostrada " operatar in luly
BITCO Mobile 490 460 370 -
telephony
vperator in
- Looihailand
Radianz @ Finunciul 90 il - -
infarmation
e e oo BEOYASEE s
FTK Mobile 34.0 164 60 60
t¢lephony
operator in
e EOIRRE
Télévision Par  Satellite 25.0 (67) (99) (67)
Satellite television
L@ _packawss
FTiCI Holding . - 785 586
compaeny for ,
investments in
STMicroelectron
e et B N
Nortel/ Télécom Argentina See 0 : .
below
Other .
Companys® 153 251 420
Total §,912 10,506 1,066

(1) Related off bulance sheet commitments are see out i Note 28
(2) Subsidiary ol Equant

(3) TPS ix accounted for vsing the equity method (25%). corresponding ro
the direet control of the parent compuany, France Télévision Bniveprisc, in
which [France Telecam has a direct contralling intercst of 65.84%. A
memorndun of understanding 1o sell TPS was signed with TFL in
December 2001 (Nere 28),

(4) Tiansferred to investment securities in 2001 (Note ¥).

Page 35 of 74




FRANCE TELECOM

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

December 31,2001

(5) These sharea include notably the investment in the Braziliun opurator
Intelig, whose value of € 87.8 million under equity accounting hus been

written down lo zero at December 31, 2001,
Telecum Argenting

Telccom Argentina, proportionally consolidated unul December
21, 2001, is equity accounted for from this date. Morcover, the
conversion of the financial statements of Telecorn Argentina as
set out in Note 2, as well as the amortizution of the entire
remaining goodwill have reduced the wvalue under equity
acoounting ta zero. The Argentinean peso crisis of December 21,
200) has lcad Telecom Argentina to designate advisory banks in
charge of setting up propositions for managesnent of ils debt. The
debt of Telecom Argentina is mainly denominated in dollars, and
the indexation of prices to the dollar has been suppressed. Franoe
Teleccom therefore considers that the Argentinean crisis has
reduced its capacity to control. France Telecom neither intends
nor i obliged 10 increase its commitments in Argentina, The
impact of the proportional consolidation of Telecum Argentina
unti] Deccember 21, 2001 is as follows;

(in millions of eurvs) 200} 2000

Sales of services und

products 1,792 ’ 1.818
Ebitda 641 685
Operating income 178 235
Financial charges (128) (126)
MohilCom

Reexamining the perspectives for the mobile telcphony market in
Germany with the presence of two dominants operators ang four
entering operators has lead Franee Telecom:

= To depreciate in full the goodwill, i.¢, €2,509 million
recorded in exceptional amortization,

* To depreciate the balance of the equity accounting value, i.c.
€ 839 million recordad in non-operating cxpenses,

= Finally 1o depreciate, as a measure of prudence, several
assets wtaling € 554 milllon (mainly the current account of
MobilCom with France Telecom), recorded in non-operating

expenses,

Chsnges in investments in affiliates arc as follows:

2001 2000 1999
{in millions of euros)
Opening balance 10.506 1,066 956
o Investments made in R
affiliatca including capiral 1208 9.958 302
inceeases "
» Contrilattion of LIS in
Sema Group - 348 -
« Conuibution of Infostrada
in Wind : 934 -
» Effect of ranster to
invosument svouritivs (786) (565) u”n
» Depreciation of the equity
accounting value of
MobilCom (319) -
« Lffect of acquisitions and
divestitures 1,326 74 (180)
» Equity in net income/(loss) (390) (275) 275
of affiliutes
e Amontization of goodwill
(336) (126) 16)
« Lxceprional amoctization of (2,687) -
poodwill
o Dividends received from 49 m (341)
affiliates
« Translation adjustment " 437 27 {7
_Closing balance 8912 10,506 1.066

™ For 2000. investments include € 2,076 miltion paid in 2001,

M ncluding in 1999 € 312 million of dividends paid by FrICL
company holding Indircetly France Telecom's investment in
STMicroglectronics.

' Or which €276 million relate fo the ranslution adjustment vn the

goadwill of TP SA in 2001.

Ih 2001, complementary invesiments relate inainly to TP SA as
set out in Note 3. The effect of scquisitions and divesliturcs show
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mainly (i) the difference ansing on the revalvation of € 620
miilion in the equity accounted value prior to the complementary
investment in Wind in July 2000 on the basis of fair value at that
datc (Note 3), (ii) the entry of the Radianz shares held by Equant,
for €342 million and (iii) the =equity actounting of
Nortel/Telecom Argentina.

In 2000, the investments made in affiliates relate mainly to
investments o the mobile tclephony opcrator MobilCom
(Gennany) and the operators TP SA (Polaad) and Wind (ltaly) as
described in Note 3.

[n 1999, the main effect of acquisitions relates to the Nonel
Inversors  cousortium,  proportionally  consolidated  fromn
Scptember 1, 1999 (Note 3)

Amorrization of goodwill arising on cquity accounted affiliates
amounts 0 € 336 million in 200! (€126 million in 2000).
Fxceptional amortization has also been recorded for €2,509
million relating to MobilCom and for € 185 million rclated to
Nortel/Tclecom Argentina.

Followi-ng this, the net book value of the principal goodwill is 85
follows at December 31, 2001:

At December 31,

2001 2000 1999

(in millions of curos)

TP SA 2574 2,668

Wing 867 1,953

BITCQ 131 243

Radiame : 155

MobilCom 0 2678 -
Nortel / Telecom Argenine 0 -

Other 29 39 53
Total 3,956 7.581 5

' The decronse in the net goodwil) for Wind is dus mainly to (i) the
impact on the preliminary goodwill in 2000 of the purchsse price
allocation cxercise on the assets ynd liabilitics acquired and (ii) the
dilution effect following the contribution of Infottrada to Wind (Note
3).

The equity in not income/(loss) of affiliates is presented as
follows:

2001 2000 1999
(in millivns of ewros)
TPSAY 65 52
Intelig 45) (98} (14)
BITCO (58) )
MobilCom @ (178) (40)
wind'" (354) (253) (138)
N{(s’r,tcl / Telecom Argenting (178)
FTICI - 181 425
Qther companies (13%) (116) 2
Fquity in nul income/(loss) (R90) (275) 278

ol affiliatcs

M Quer three nnds in 2000 (Nore 3)
@ Over two months in 2000 (Note 3)
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As sct out in Nole 3, the contribulion of Infostrada to Wind in July
2001 brought France Telcvom's controlling interest in the new enticy
Wind/lnfostruda from 43 4% to 26.6%.
Company proportionally consolidated unlil December 21, 2001,
The loss under cquity accuunting covers the period from December
21, 2001 to Deccmber 31, 2001 und corresponds mninly to the loss
recorded by these companies on sheir dollsr . denominued
borrowings,
Incloding € 399 million in 1999 from disposal of parmt of the
investment in STMicroelectronics (Note 1),

OTHER INVESTMENT SECURITIES AND

RELATED RECEIVABLES

France Telecom's main investment sccurities are #s follows:

At Decermber 31, At Dec
a1,
2001 2000
(in millions of Y Cost Provi- Net Net
) interest sion book buok
€uros) value  wvalue
NTL shares
18.3% 2,967  (2,967) 0 2,074
NTL preferrcd
sharcs
Serics " - 2938 (1.910) 1,028 2319
Series @ . 777 (508) mn m
NTL conventible
nows .20 Qe 89 230
Bull SA 16.9% 438 (438) 0 34
Bull SA other
instryments - L ) NN SISO S )
_Panafon Wo%,. .35 o L83
Sema Group plc . - et 565
Sprint $.7% 306 - 306 1.617
Quoted companies 7,724 (6,014) 1,710 8,184
XPN Oronge - St - 1/
Muuritius
Telecom - - - - 310
FricL® 36.2% %64 - as4 -
Satellite
organizations 333 - 335 218
[+3]
Optimus 20.0% 122 - 2z 4
Conneel Austria 17.5%_ 12 - oH2 10y
Other cosnpanics 516 (419) 457 786
Non quoted companies 1949 (d419) 1.530 2,034
Total 9,673  (6,433) 3,240 10,216

[t

2

(L]

Invesunent congolidated from Junuury 1, 2001

5% Cumulative Participating Converlible Preferred Stocks

5% Cumulative Participating Convertible Preferred Stocks

' Transferred to Investments accounted for using the cquity method
then pare divestment ag part of the exit of France Telecam from
STMigraclectronics (sce below),
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At the datc of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements  of France Telecom, 2001 net income and
sharcholders” equity which major quoted and non-consoliduted
investees have made available are as follows:

2001
Sharcholders’ Net income
equity " for the period
{in millions of euros) 0
NTL n/a n/a
Sprint” 14,315 (1,417

n/a ; not available
" Local GAAP dat, transtated at closing rate at December 31, 2001

Investment in NTL

In 1999, France Telecom acquired ordinary and preferred sharcs
ol NTL. wlephonc, interner access and cable television operator
for € 2.97 billion and € 2.94 billion respectively.

As part of an issuc by NTL in March 2000 of 1.85 million
preterred sharcs, for US$ 1.85 billion, besring interest at 5% and
payablc in preferred stock, PFrancc Telccom topether with
financial institutions subscribed preferred shares for USS 750
million (€ 777 millign at the historical rate) and USS 1.! billion
respectively. As part of this wransaction, France Telecom entered
into put and call option sgrecments with these four financial
institutions, amended in January 2002 (Mote 28).

At December 31, 2001, France Telecom held 18.3% of the voting
rights (18.6% at December 31, 2000).

On Seprember 12, 2001, France Telecom, the financial
instiutions and NTL agresd that these shares:

» may be exchangeable in whole or in part, at the choice of
France Telecom, inte shares of NTL Cablecom Holding
GmbH, representing up to 50% of the sharc capital of the
company (this company holds the cable television activity
of NTL in Switzerland).

* may be convertible in wholc or in par, at the choice of
France Tclecom at March 27, 2002. 2003 or 2004 into
~--convertible preferred sheres, comvertible into common

shares of NTL until March 2009 (unless NTL at that time
opts for cash reimbursement or defers convertibility of the
preferred shares by one year, but in no ¢vent lster than
March 27, 2004). Thc number of NTL ordinary shares
obtained through conversion of the convertible preferred
shares would be equal to liquidation value per preferrcd
share (US$ 1,091), divided by the weighted average sharc
pricc of the 25 days prior w the datt the prefecred shares
become convertible preferred shares multiplied by 1.25.

e are repayable in cash on March 27, 2009 for thosc preferred
shares, which are neither exchanged nor convened,

In order lo reduce its debt, NTL began corly in 2002 o scck a
new strategic shareholder and commenced a process of financial
restructuring. In this context, France Telecom has decided not to
increase its financial commitments within NTL, and w0
roeppreciate the value in use of its investment on the following
basis:
+  The ordinary shares have been completely depreciated,
reprosenting a complementary provision of € 2,075
million in 2001,

»  The convertible notes have been valued on the basis of
their market price at December 31, 2001, resulting in a
depreciation charge of € 161 million,

e The preferred shares have been depreciated for 65% of
their nominal value, resulting in a charge of €2,415
million. The depreciation of the preferred sharcs was
detennined by reference to the market vajues of the
NTL notes. On the assumption of a favorable outcome
from the process of finsncial restructuring committed
and on the basis of the busincss plan presented by NTL
management, the managecment of France Tclccon
considers that the net book value of thesc preferred
shares corresponds to the best estimate of the proboble
realizable value of its economic interest in NTL.

» A provision for risk of € §11 million has also been set
up on the same basis for the preferred shares held by
the financial instistions and which arc subject to put
and call options with France Telecom (Note 28).
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«  Different costs linked to this operition bave also been
“recorded as charges for € 448 million,

‘(hese items have been recorded in non-operating expenses for a
1otal of € 5.910 million (Note 25).

The management of Frence Telecom considers that it is not
cxposed o financial risk beyond the not book valuc of the
investments snd commitments sct out above i.c. € 1,806 million,

Divesiments in 2001

Exit from STMicroelectronics

In December 2001, STMicroclectronies Holding If BV (STH 1)
the helding company through which France Telecom, Areva, und
Finmeccanica held wgether an investment of 43.4% of the capilal
of $TMicroelectranics NV (STM) made a private placement of
69 million STM shares, of which 39 miliion on behalf of France
Telecom apd 30 million for Finmeccanica. Following this
placcliﬁcm and as part of the new agrecinent with Areva, France
Telecom reduced from 49% to 36.2% its holding in FTICI, the
company holding indirectly 50% of the capital of STF 1. This
operation gencrated a gain before tax of '€ 1,068 million.

Simultaneous to the placement of STM shares by STH 1I, France
‘Felecom issucd notes convertible into STM shares for a nominal
valuc of € 1.5 billion (Note 13). These notes are exchangeable
{rom January 2, 2004 into 30 million existing STM shares,
subject o subsequent revision of the exchange parity. The STM
shares underlying the notes issucd have been placed under
¢scrow hy STH Il and will be transferred to France Telecom
ihrough (he exercise of the call options issued by STH 1. As part
of the agreement with Areva, France Telccom has commited to
reduce its share in FTICI through and in proportion to the
wuamber of STM shares which are transferred to hoiders of the
exchangeable notes.

Under the sharcholder agreement held with Areva and
Finineeeanica, France Telecom has commitied to retaining the
haluncirof ity indircet share in STM ntil the end of June 2002,

from which date France Telecom is entitled to digpose of it
within e limits and conditions sct out in the shareholder

agreement.

Sprint FON

As part of a public offering France Telecom sold ils share of
9.9% of Sprint FON, the American tclccommunications operator,
for USS 1,616 million (€ 1,899 million) on Junc 4, 2001. The
pre-tax gain on this transaction (net of exchangt) unounts to
€ 181 million.

Sema Group plc

On February 12, 2001, in accordance with the agreement
reachcd with Schiumberger and Semu Group ple, France
Telecom contributed its investrnent in Sema proup ple to the
public offer for an amount of € 931 milliun. The pre-tax gain on
this lransaction amoeunts W € 401 million,

KPN Orange

In February 2001, France Telecom sold its 50% share in KPN
Orunge (Belgivm) to KPN Mobile {or a net cash payment of €
500 million, including € 102 million for the reimbursement of
short-term borrowings. KPN Orange being reflccted at fair value

. in the purchsse price allocation of Orange plc, this transaction

has no effect on the income before tax for the period.

Divestirures in 2000
Telefonos de Mexico (Telmex)

In June 2000, France Telecom sold its stake of 7.0% in the
Mexican national telecommunications operator, Telefonos de
Mexico (Telmex) in the form of an intemational public offering
on the Mexican, American and European markets. The salcs
price, het of commission and costs, amounted to US$ 2.7 billion
(€ 2.9 billion). The net gain after 1ax amounts to € 2,173 million.
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Crown Castle International Corp Group (CCIC)

In connection with the investments made in the British
wlecommunicelions operator NTL, the British competition
authorities (Office of Fair Trading) requested that France
Tclecom withdraw from the companies forming the Crown
Castle Intermational Corp Group (CCIC) before Qctober 31,
2000, In June 2000, France Telecomn sold a first tranche of 24.9
mitlion ordinury CCIC shares in a public offering. The sales
pricc amounted to US$ 693 million (€ 730 million). The nct gain
after tax amounts to € 301 million,

o

In accordance with the commitments given in May 2000 by
Franve Telecom to the British competition authorities, those
shares of CCIC which were not sold as part of the public offering
in June 2000, were sold to a financial institution. In July 2000,
France Telecom sold 177 million shares. The sales price
amounted to US$ 505 miltion, The recognition of this sale in the
statciment of income has been deferred given the contractual
commiunents of France Tetecom (Note 28).

Deutsche Telckom

Pursuant to the framework agreement cntered into in May 2000
between France Telecom, Deutsche Telekom and Kreditanstalt
fur Wicderaufbau (KfW) to unwind the cross sharcholdings
baween France Telccom and Deutsche Telekom, France
Telecom sold its 1.8% holding in Deutsche Telekom o KfW in
December 2000, The sales price amounted to € 3.1 billion. The
net after lax gain amounis to € [,845 mitlion,

9 TRADE ACCOUNTS  RECEIVABLE, LESS

ALLOWANCES

Securitization of receivables

In Junc 2001, France Telecom sold trade reccivables for fixed
line telephony ¢ontracts with consumers and comain businesscs in
France. This sale was made without recourse, as purt of u
securitization program with a Security Fund (Pordy cammun de

créunces). France Telecom remains in charge of servicing the
transferred receivebles on behalf of the Fonds commun de

créances.

France Telecom subseribed for benefical interests in the FCC,
notably benefical interests subordinated for risk of non-recovery
of the scounlized recoivables. Such benefical interests are
recorded in "Other loug-lerm  asscts, net”. Consequently,
depreciation of such benefical interests. is presented as u
reduction in "Other long-term assets, nct". Losses on
imecoverable receivables and movements in the depreciation
provision for sccuritized receivables arc presented within
gperating ¢Xpenses.

The positive effect of this operstion on operating cash flow
amounts in 2001 to € 914 million (excluding costs of sale of
receivables -- sex Note 25). As a result of this transaction, "1rade
accounts reccivable! have been rwduced by € 1,765 million,
corregponding lo the transferred reccivables, and "Other long-
term asyets, net” have been increased by a net amount of € 851
million of hencficial interests in the Fonds commun de créances.

10+ PREPAID EXPENSES AND OTHER CURRENT
ASSETS ’

At December 31, 2001, the variation of other receivables and
prepaid expenscs is due primarily to the differcnt categorics of
preferred shares and securitics with a May 2002 maturity on NTL
(€ 553 million) and Morgan Stanley Dean Witter (€ 510 million)
received as payment fiom the sale of Noos shares.

On May 18, 2001, in sccordance with the agreement reached in
August 2000 with Suez Lyonnaisc des Eaux, Noos’ majority
sharcholder, France Tclecom (i) brought its aggregate interest in
Noos {0 49.9% in vxchange for the contribution of Trance
Telecom's cable network infrastrueture used by Noos and aother
minorty shares in cuble operators, subsequently (il) sold is
entire interest in Noos for an umount of € 1,187 million 10
Morgan  Stanlcy Dcan Witter Private [quity and NTIL.
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Incorporated (respectively 22.9% und 27%). The diflerent
categories of preferred shares and securities issued by the
purchasers that represent the ssle pricc have a maturity date of
May 18, 2002; excepl for an amount of € 138 million, which is
duc on May 18, 2007. As security, France Telecons maintaing
pledges on the Noos shares,

In the context of the NTL's financial restructuring (see note 8),
no result was recorded from this sale of shares, and the gain
recorded at June 30, 2001 (cepresenting € 333 million) has been
reclassified as deferred income at December 31, 2001,

11 DEFERRED INCOME

Al December 31, 2001, apart from the operation set out in note
10 above, this heading includes for € 634 million the effect of
spreading over 20 years the invoicing of civil works within the
context of the contribution of cable networks.

12.  NET BORROWINGS

France Telecom’s net borrowings are as follows:

[

Net borrowings Note 2001 2000

(in miilions of euros)

Exchangcable or convertible notes 13 10,750 2,653

Other  long-term  borrowings) 14 45,380 | 35436

(including the pordon due withjn

Qne year)

Bank overdrafts and other shoreterm| 15 | 11,365 | 25,165
borrowingzs

Gruf;n barrawings 67,504 63,254
Markelablc sevuritics ' (1,138) Q216
Cash (2.943) (2.040)
Nel borrowings (¥) 63,423 50,998

(*) ARer taking into account the receivable from sale of real
estate for €2,689 million (Note 6), the nct borrowings of France

Telecom amount (o € 60,734,

At December 31, 2001, (ke contribution of newly consolidated
companies in 2001 anounts o € 38 million. Moreover,
accounting for Nortel / Telecom Argentina using the equily
inethod since December 21, 2001 has the effect of reducing net
borrowings of France Tclecom at December 31, 2001 by
€ 2 billion.

The bond market is the main source of long-term financing for
France Telecom.

The annval weighted average interest rate of France Telecom's
net borrowings in 2001 represents 5.82% compared o 5.74% in
2000. Morcover, the weighted average spot rate of bank loans
and nows smounts st the end of December 2001 to 5.29%
compared to 5.98% al the ¢nd of 2000
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13.  CONVERTIBLE AND EXCHANGEABLE NOTES

The table below gives details of outstanding convertible or
exchangeable notes issued by France Telecom SA at
December 31, 2001:

Origin Amount  Maturity Interest Rate At Decomber 31,
al isxued
curren
ey
i 2001 2000
%) (in milltons of euros)
Luro 623 2004 4125@ 623 623
3¢ 13,322 2004 20009 2030 2,030
fure 3,082 2003 2,500 3.082
Luro 3492 2005 4.000 % 3,492
Euro 1.523 2004 1.000 1,523

Total convertible or exchangeable notes

10,750 2,653

1) in millions of currency

2) Bond of nominal value of € 1,000 exchangeable for Pansfon
shares between January B, 2000 and November 29, 2004, at A
ratio of approximately 70 sharex per bond, this ratio may be

subjeet o adjustment.

J) Bond of nominal value of € 800 convettible info Fronce
Telecom shares between Decernber 7. 1999 and Januury 1, 2004
a1 a ratio of 10 shares per bond, thus a price of € 80 per shary,

this ratio covld be subject lo adjustment.

4)  Bond of nominal value of € 12,7 exchangeuble for Orange S.A.
shares at a ratio of one share per bond, thus & price of € 12.7 per

sharc, this ratio could be subject to adjustment.

5) Bond of nomina! value of € 1,000 exchungsable for France
Telecom shares at ¥ ratio of 13,8889 shares per bond, thus @
price of € 72 per sharc, this ratin could be subject 0 adjustment.

6) Bond of nomina) value of € 1,000 exchangesble for
STMicroclectronics shures at 8 ratio of 19.6986 shares per
bond, thug a pricc of € 50.765 per share, this ratio could be

subject to adjustment,

The characteristics of Lthe exchangoable notes issued by France
Telecom in 2001 arc as follows:

Notes exchangeable for shares of Orange SA

Concurrent with the sale of shares of Orange SA in February
2001, Franc: Telecom issucd cxchangeable notes for € 3.)
billion. The notes, of nominal value € 12.70, bear interest at a
rate of 2.5% per annum with the firsl payment duc on February
16, 2002 and the final payment due on Febmary 16, 2003. Atany
tine after their issue, these notes are redeemable by way of
cxchange, at the option of thc holder, for existing shares of
Orunge SA at an initial ratio of onc share for each note, subject 1o
adjustment on the occurrence of certain events and subject to the
right of France Telecom to elect to pay cash in Jiev of delivering
shares of Orange SA.

Notes exchungeable for shares of France Telecom

On November 29, 2001, France Teleccom issued notes
exchangeable for its own sharey for € 3.5 billion. The notes, of
nominal value € 1,000, bear interest at a rale of 4% per annum.
At any time after their issuc, these notes arc redeemable by way
of exchange, at the option of the holder, for existing shares of
France Tclecom at a ratio of 13.8889 per bond (representing sn
cxchange price per share of € 72), this ratio being subject 1o
possible adjustment. Starting December 15, 2003 under cerwin
conditions, then unconditionally starting December 13, 2004, the
notes issued arc repuyable in advunce gt « price corresponding to
their nominal valuc phus accrucd interust,
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Under certain conditions, France Telecom has the right to
reimburse the bond following the following terms:

Hi

- delivery of France Telecom sharcs on the basis of the

exchange ratio,

- and settlement of the positive difference berween the
redemption price of the bond and 99% of the market
valuc of the exchanged sharey.

Notes exchangeable for shares of STMicroelectronics

Concurrent with the private placement of 69 million common
shares of STMicroelecwronivs in December 2001, France
Teleoom issucd exchangeable notes for € 1.5 billion (see note 8).
‘Ihe notes, ¢f nominal value € 1,000, bear intcrest at a rate of 1%
per anhum. Starting January 2, 2004 until December 17, 2004,
these hotes are redeemable for shares of STMicroclectronics at a
ratio of 19.6986 share for each note (representing an exchange
price per STMicroclectronics share of € 50.765), this ratio may
be subjcct to adjusoment. Sterting Jsnuary 24, 2004, without
condition, France Telécom can exercisc its option of anticipated

repRyment.

Under certain conditions, France Telecom has the right o repay
the bond following these terms:

- delivery of STMicroelectronics sharcs on the basis of the
exchange ratio,

- seitlement of the positive. difference between the redemption
price of the bond and 99% of the market value of the vxchanged

shares

14. OTHER LONG-TERM BORROWINGS

The table below presents an anulysis of France Telecom's other
long-term borrowings by type, after the effects of currency
SWaps:

Other long-term borrowings At December 31,

2001 2000

(in millions of euroy)
Notes . 34,251 19,128
Capital leases 73 140
Bank {oons ¥ 6,338 15,773
Other non-bark loans " 727 355
Total other long-term borrowings 45,389 35,436

Due-within one year (1.596) (1.542)
Other long-term burrawinga cxcluding 43,793 27,894

current gortion

1) Primarily the long-teem paortion of cash udvances from

associatcs

2) Includes at December 31, 2000, € 10 billion relating to
the syndicated credil line of July 31, 2000, refinanced a5
long-term borrowings on March 14, 2001,

The movement in notes is primarily duc to the following:

- On Maich 14, 2001, France Telecom issued intcrnational notes
for the equivalent of € 17.6 billion. The notes were issued to
refinance existing borrowings and consist of 7 tranches, of which
4 tranches are in USS for USS$ 9 billion, 2 in curos for € 7 billien,
and one in GBP for GBP 600 million, The notcs miature herween
2 and 30 years,

- Al December 31, 2001, outstanding notes issucd under the
EMTN prograins amount 10 € 16,681 million, of which € 16,055
million is classified as long-term debt,
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The table below presents the znnual inaturities of total long-term At December 31,

i ) Origin  Amount Maty Iuterest Rate
debt at December 31, 2001, excluding the short-term portion,
al lssned  rity

after thg effect of currency swaps: curren
cy
m 2001 2000
{in millions of curos) 2001 2000
% in milli Curos,
Two yeurs 10070 | 1,682 %) {in millions of cures)
cur 200 2002 3.250 115 13
Three ycars 5,405 3,474 T e R SIS R S e e e
FF 2,000 2002 9.000 305 305
Four years 5,223 1,550 S e e LR B i At ahnes
F¥ 2,500 2003 7.475 381 181
Five yodrs 3,040 3,485 T - R
uss 1,000 2,003 US Libor 3 months+ 1.25% 1,138 -
Six years snd above 18,155 | 17,663 T e e S e S e
Puro  ...2250 2003 Euribordmonchstl® 2250 -
Total other long-terin financial borrowinps duc| 43,79 27,894 ’
alter more than one¢ year CHE ._-20_'1...7.‘993... e 3230 s B
, JPY 275000 2003 _SP Libor 3 months+ .55 238 -
“I'me table below sets our notes by issuer (excluding convertible
f 2
or cxchangeable notes): Furo 1490 2003 Euribor3months¥0275 1400 1400
FF©® 1500 2004 5750 229 229
h
Notes At December 3L, luru‘ - 3,500 2004 5750 3,500
(in millions of euros) 2001 2000
Y 50000 2004 1.000™ 43 -
France Telecom SA 36.985 t7,083 T A )
Orange ple 1,164 1,135 Fero 1000 2008 . .. 6125 . .L000 1000
Nomul / Telecom Argentina & - ¥24 Buo 2,750 2008 3,000 2,750 -
Other issucrs 102 8 GBP 500 2005 . 700 ___ 82 801
Toal sas RO BO00_2008 480 305 365
TP 1000 2005 1,000 152152
b Faclutling convertible or exchaugeable notes. Cue 1000 2006 45000 614 -
1) Consolidated using the cquiry method since December 21, 2001, uss 2000 2006 ____,.___,\,_7_-292",‘,”,, 2L L
FF 4500 2006 e S0 686 686
FF 300 2006 3.030% unt! 7/08/01 then 46 48

he tabte below gives details of other outstanding notes issued
by France Telecom SA at December 31, 2001, before o mwemmeenl..  indcxed on theTECIO®

consideration of the impact of interest o currency swap FEW 6,000 2007 $.750 915 915

ARTCLMENLS:

Boro 3,500 2008 L BTSN LS
e 3000 2008 5400 457487
FF 900 2008 4.600% untit 12/03/02, 137y

then TEC (0™
o leas0.675%
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At December 31, 2001, borrowings 3lso include the bond debt of
Orange plc:

FF 200 2008 10.165%, 30 30

e mmvaen o o ewo eS8 3monthPIBOR -
uss 500 2008 ... 8000 387 87
RO usw 209 TECOY_m
TRU 3000 2000 L STW 45T 45T
By 1400 2010 .. 885 | 1400 _ 1400
Uss __ 3s0 zent o TISOCL AL
oBr w0 zou . 73000 % -
GBP 4502020 7.250 740 72
uss  _zsw zom nso o -
I.eans macing in 2001 6.692
Currency Swaps (233) (59)
Total o(lr'icr notus 36915 17,083

] Lo millions of currency.

2}
Company’s shares, capped at 100% of the share value at issue, and

With o redemption premium indexed on the value of the

covered by a swap of the same amount, which indexes rhis debt on

PIBOR.

kS TEL10: variable rate with constant 10-year maturity, determined
by the Comiré de Normulisatinn Obligatalre,

) Notcs with coupons subject 0 revision in case of changes in

credit rating.

5)

inla curos.

These loans, initially denominated in FF, have been converted

At December 31, 2001, France Telecom SA notes are repayable
at due date, and no specific guarantees have been given in
relation to their issue. The outsianding notes of France Telecom
SA at Decomber 31, 2001 have hot heen guarantecd. Certain

nolcs may be repayable in advance, at the request of the issucr,

Origi Amoun Maturil Interes Aull
nal  tisswed y tRate December
curre
ney
2001 2000
%) {in millions  (in millions of
of euros) curos)
USs 197 2006 8.75 224 23
GBP 197 2008  8.63 324 316
USs 18 2008  8.00 21 t9
Euro 94 2008 763 94 94
GBP 150 2009  8.8% 247 240
US§ 263 2009  9.00 298 282
Currency Swaps (44) (29)
Tetal 1,164 1,135
1s. OTIIER SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

The table below presents an analysis of France Tclecom's other
shoa-tern borrowings by type, afier the cffects of currency
swaps: )

Other short-term borrowinps Al December 31,

2001 2000

(in millions of tures)

Shont-term notes and commercial

paper™ 2,169 10,129
Bank loans 7,619 13,603
Overdrafis 995 794
Other loans 82 639
Fotal 11,368 15,165

" The balance at December 31, 2001 includes only short-térm notcs.

Interest rates on France Telecom’s short-term borrowings are
generally based on French and foreign (esrentially U.S.) money
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market rates, The \'vcigh(ed average intertst rate on negotiable
bills and bank loans (after taking into account the effect of
interest rate hedging instruments) amounts to 4.38% at December
11, 2001, compared to 5.68% at December 31, 2000,

At December 31, 2001, France Telecom had the following
bilateral and syndicated credit lines:

At December 33,2001

Origin  Amounts  Equivnlenls  Amounis

al in In millions of drawn in
(in mllions of euros)  curren  Currcncy euros millions
cy of curos
Bitateral credit lines
Long-term ¥ uss 245 289 221
Long-term ! Eure 7 7 6
Long.tetm CHF 39 26 26
Court term " Euro 1,085 1,055 ‘
Bank overdrafts Luro 150 150 -
Syndicated credit lines
Long-term ¥ MCY U500 15,000 5.200
Longewrm O Me o 1,400 1,549 1.550
Long-term ® Gap 1.599 2,624 2,545
1 ong-term BCF 18,000 446 367
Long-term ™ DEM 218 RN 9
1) ‘T he weighted average muturity of these lﬁng-lcrm credit lines is
1L.31 yeurs fur France Telecom SA.
2) me= Multi-curency facilities, deneminated in USS cquivalents.
3 MC = Mult<umency  locilitics, denominated in Furo
cquivalents.
4) Synditaied credit line of € 30 Lillion negotiawed in relation with
the purchase of Orange plc was reduced 10 € 15 billion.
5) At December 31, 2001, the anwounts drawn against these tredit

lines are classified in tong.term debt.

On Febrvary 14. 2002, France Telecom negotiated a € 15 billion
multi-currency syndicated credit line replacing the credit line
nepolinted in relation with the purchase of Orange ple.  This
credit line is composed of two tranches;

- Tranche A of € 5 billion, with one ye&r maturity and one year
term-out, thus u total of 2 years following closing date.

- Tranche B of € 10 billion, with 3 year maturity,

When this syndicatcd credit line way obtained, France Telecom
committed to maintain certain finuncig! ratios using EBITDA,
interest expense and net borrowings,

16. EXPOSURE TO MARKET RISKS

Market risk management

In conncetion with its industrial and cominercial activitics,
France Telecom is exposed to various types of market risk
rclated 1o the management of the cost of its debt and the value of
cerain foreign currency denominated asscts (foreign investment
sceurities). Based on an analysis of its overall rsk exposure,
primarily due to changes in interest rates and cxchange rates,
Franoe Telecom uses a varicty of derivative financial instruments
within limits set by management 25 to their potential impact on
the statement of income, with the objective being to optimize the
cost of financiag,

France Telceom distingishes between three different types of
use of derivative financial instruments: ’

Lang-term debr rare risk management

France Telecom aimg 1o balance ils long-term debt porfolio
benween fixed and variable rate instruments in Eures so as to
minimize the cost of financing, and uses firm and optional
intcrest rate insteuments (swaps, furure, caps and floors) within
limits cstablished by management.

The following tabie analyzes long-term debt by interost rate,
including all exchangeable and convertible notes and other long-
term debt, with the short-term portion, taking into account the
cffcet of interest rate and currency rate-swap agreements:

Page 47 of 74




FRANCE TELECOM

. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :

December 31,2001

December 31,
{in millious of euroy) 2001 2000
Notes and bank toans
Less than 5% 15377 3,490
Between 5 and 7% 18,717 5,681
Between 7% and 9% 6,708 5,748
Greater than D% 322 394
Total fixed rate (Weightod average 41.[24 13313
spotrate: 5,51% at 31/12/01; 6.33%
ot 31/12/00)
Totul variable rate (Weighted average 14,942 22,596
spot eate: 4,70% at 31/12/1; 5.75%
at 11/12/00)
Total bank loans and notes 56,066 37,909
(Weighted average spot rate:
$.29%a1 31/12/01; 5.98% nt
31/12/00)
Capiwl leases
73 180
Total Iang-lcrm borrnwinsé 56,139 39.089

" Longsterm debt including convertible and exchangeable notes,

The interest rate swaps at December 31, 2001 included jn the
table above are as follows:

At December 31, 2001, a notional amount of € 594 million of
swaps nol qualifying as hedges for accounting purposes is
available to France Telccom. Those swaps were accounted for
using the method described in Note 2.

Short-term debt rate visk monagement

France Telecom mpanages a trousury position as either lender or
borrower depending on cash flows provided by opcrating cash
flows and inawrities of long-term debt. France Telecom
periodically reviews its projected short-term debt position and
may use derivative interest rale instruments (fulure rate
ugreements, short-term swaps, EURIBOR contracts and interest
rale collar agreements) to cover this position against unfavorable

changes in interest tates.
-

At Deceinber 31, 2001, the denvative interest rate instrumcents
covering the short-tenn debt intercst rates are as follows:

Notional amount in

millions of curos

Swap ta cover long.term debt Nominal
in millions of
curos
Swaps paying fixed rate and reeciving variable rate 12.028
Swaps paying variable ratc and recciving fixed rate 7,106
Swaps paying variable rate and recejving variable rate (4
Swaps of structured issues against variable rate N

Short-term swaps allocated to shen-term notes 1,170
issued

3 month Euribor contract (Marurity March, Junc, 22,822
Seplember 2002)

Sale of option on 3 month Furibor contract 5.500

{Malurity March, June, September)™

Sale of 3 month Luredollar contract (Mannity 1,702
March and Junc)

Interest rate swups sre used to cover 4 part of France Telecom's
future bond .issues. At December 31, 2001, €300 million of
forward fixed ratc swaps is available to France Tefecom 1o cover
future notes issuc at vanable rare as well as € 2,250 million of
fixed rate swaps covering future bond issucs at fixed interest rate.

Rate collar (purchase of cap/sale of floor) 1.500

" The interest rate collor agrcements and the future sules contracts
hedging the future short-term debl imerest raees hsve nor been
qualificd as hedgiog instrumems, The sceounting method of these
wigtruments iz deseribed in Note 2.

Forcign currency risk management

‘The activitics of France Telecom abroad are carried out by
subsidiaries operating cssentially in their own countrics.
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Therefore, the exposure to forcign currency risk on these
vommcercial operations is limited. France Telecom primarily
hedges the risk related to the issuance of foreign currency notes
and on certain assets in foreign currency notably certain non-

SIrategic investments.

In order (o takc advantage of opportunities to reduce the cost of
borrowings, debt instrumems may in some cases be initially
contracted in foreign currencies. They are generally converted
into Euros immediately through the use of currency ratc swap
ypreements in order to reduce France Telecom’s exposurc to
forcign cxchange risk.

Long-term borrowings by currency, taking into 2ccount the effect
of currency swap contracts, is as follows:

The following table gives, for the off balance sheel instruments
{currency swups, foreign exchange forward conwmacts and
curtency oplions) held by France Telecom group, details on the
currencies to be delivered and to be received:

Amounts in millions of curreuey

1) EUR uss JPY GBP Other
currencles
2)
Asset  leg  of] 685 6,002 |447,300 600 293
currency swaps
Liabitity leg of| (11,285) (14} [ (361) (377)
CUITENCy sWapsy
Currency to be 604 781 0 1,084 &64
received on

forward  cumency

At December 31,
(in millions of cures) 2001 2000
Euru 43,622 26755
GBP - 5335 5378
uss 5,859 5,463
Other ¢currsncics 1313 493
Total long-t¢rm borrowings 56,139 38,089

The horvower position in foreign currency detailed above is due
to!

- borrowings of the subsidiaries in the currency in which they
operate;

- France Telecom's foreign currency debts used to finance the
subsidiaries' operations in this same currency, or hedging assets

in this currency.

Al Decomber 31, 2001, France Telecom SA hedged assets in
loreign currency through s borrower position and currency

options of an amount equivalent to € 2,590 million. At Deccmber

31. 2001, Francc Tclecom was exposed to forcign currency risk
due 10 & non hedged foreign currency borcower position for an
amount equivalent 1o € 3,159 million.

contracts
Currency to bhe]  (3,055) (248) v (194) (243)
delivered on

forward curency

contracts

Cuerency oplions 1,485 | (1.500) 0 0 0

(1) - Positive values indicate the currencics to be received and
negative values indicate the currencies to be delivered.

(2) - In Euro equivalent.

Credir risk management

Financial instniments that potentially subject France Telecom to
concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash
cquivalents, negotiable bills, marketable secunmtics, trade
accounts receivable and financial instruments used in hedging
activities

France Telecon does not consider itself cxposed (o a
concentration of credit risk with respect to trade accounts
receivable due lo its large and diverse custoimer base (residentis),
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professional and Jarge business customcers) operating in
numerous industries and located in many regions and countries.

Frunce Teleccom places s cash cquivalents and marketable
securitics . with a number of very bighly rated financiu)
institutions and industcial groups, Francc Telecom contracts
interest ratc and foreign exchsnge instruments with major high
credit ‘quality financial institutions. France Telecom does not
belicye that there is » significant risk of nonperformance by those
counterparties because it continually monitors their credit ratings
and limits the financial exposure to uny one financial institution.
For cach financial institution, the maximum loss in the event of
aonperformance is determined based on the notional amounts of
inicrest rate and foreign cxchange contacts outstunding and
coefficicnts, which take into account their nature and remuining

duration.

Individual limits are established based on the counterpartics’
credit rating and net assers. Contracts with a duration of mort
than onc year can in principlc only be entered into with {inancial
ingtitutions having a credit rating of at least AA-/Aa3 from at
Jeast rwo credit rating agencics.

Nortional amounts ¢f derivative financial instruments

The contract of national amounts shown below do not represent
amounts exchanged und thus arc not a ineasure of the exposure of
France Telecom through its use of derivatives

__AtDecember 31,

{in millions of cures) 200 2000
Taterest rate caps 1,541 968
Interest rate collars (eaps and floors) 1,500 562
Interest rite swaps 24,953 20,712
Currency swaps 12,567 547!
Forward currency contracts 4,143 5416
Currency options 1,702 2,149
Futures 21,524 8,550
Options'dn furures 5,500

17 » FAIR YVALUT OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The principal methods and assumptions used 1o estimate the fair
value of each class of financial instruments arc desenbed below.

For cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts recelvable, bank
overdrafls apd other short-term borrowings and trade accounts
payable, France Telecom cousiders their carrying value (o be the
most representative estiimate of marker value, due 10 the short-
term maturity of these instruments.

The market value of non-consolidated marketuble securitics und
unrestricted investments in quoted companies has been estimated
based on quuted market prices at December 28, 2001, For other
investments, France Telecom considers, using available
information, that their market value Is not less than carrying

value,

At December 31,

(in millions of curos) 2001 2000

Carryin  Falr  Carryin  Fair

Financial invtruments
gvalue  value pvalue  value

(assets)

Marketable sceurities

1.138 1,138 216 216
Non conselidated investmein
securitied and related
receivables 3231 667 10,218 11357
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The markel value of long-term debt was determined using:

- the present value of [uture cash flows, discounted using rates
available to Francc Telecom &t December 28, 2000 for
instruments with similar terms and maturitics;

- the quoted market value for converible, exchangeable and
ihdexed notes

At Deeember 31,

(in millions of curos) 2001 1000

Carryin  Fair  Carryin Fair
gvalue  value  gvRlue  value

I'inancial instrumcnts
- {liabilitics)

Dank overdrafts and othcr
short-term leans " ¥
11,3G5 11,368 25,165 25,165

1.onp:term bomowings !t &

56.139  57.598 38089 38,596
1) Afler taking into account the effect of currency swap conlracts,

2)  The accvunting and market values presented exclude accrued

faterest.

The aic values of currency oxchange and interost rawe swap
contracts were estimated by discounting the expected future cash
flows using market exchange rates and rclated interest rates ut
Occember 28, 2001 over the remaining terms of the contracts.

The fair value of over-the-counter options was esimarcd using
option pricing togls recoganized by the market.

At December 31,

(in millions of curos) 2001 2000

Carryln  Fair  Carryln  Fair
gvalue  value gvalue  value

OIf balance sheet
financial instruments
[

Interest rate cops 5 ) 7 4
Interest rate collars (caps )

and floor) . 9 - {2)
Interest rate swaps Gl {259) 6 (n
Currency swaps 235 kk13 (146) [ )
Forwurd cucrency

conracrs 42 a3 @ (@37)
Currency options (72) 217 . (170)
Futuces ) &) . -
Optiops on funres [ed)) 20 T )
Tota) (129) o1 £ ‘(6_7_62_

1) Market vulue of swaps includes accrucd interest,

2) The camrying value of off bulance sheet derivative instrumenta
inctudes acerusd interest; discounts and premiums paid for or
received, as well as exchange differences already accounted for
in France Telecam's books. The differcnce berween accounting
and market. values representa the unrealized 2ain or loss on off

balance sheet derivative instruments,
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18-PENSION PLANS AND OTHER LONG-TERM
LIABILITIES

Pension plans and other long-torm liabilities are as follows:

Larly retirement plait

At December 31,

2001 2000
Mordon  Portion less  Total Total
more than one
(in millions of eutos)  than onc year @

year

At December 39,

1479 616 4,095 4,149
fPost retirement
henefits other than 143 § 119 40
pensivns
Reirement
indemnitics 154 24 \75 133
(.ong-term deferred
o 330 - 230 830
Provisioa for Fgquant 2,077 - 2077
CVR3
Provision for the gt - 811
cymmitment for NTL
prefoered shares
Qther lonp-tenn
liahilities 1,672 83 1,755 509
_Votal 8,663 729 9,392 §.761

1) The current portion fs included in «curent liabilitics».

2) Note 26

Larly retirement plun for Freach civil servanis

‘The actuarial cost of the carly retirement plan described in Note
2, 3nd the sensitivity of this cost Lo the success ratc of the plan

are as follows:

2001 2000

Plan data (in millions of euros)
Actuarin) value of the plun at the beginning .

of the year 4,823 4,935
Actuarial xdjustments 5} 55
Discounting vlTect 229 2317
Payments mude (492) (404}
Acwarial value of (he plao at the end of the 4611 4.823

year
Actoarial adjustment not yct amortized (516) (671)
Accrued carly retirement fiability 4,095 4,149
Assomptions
* Success rate 94% 94%
* Discount rae % 5%
Analysis of Lhe tharge for the year
Discovnt charge 229 237
Arnortization of actuarial adjustiment 2i0 220
Churge for the year 439 457
Effccl of 2 change in the success rafe of
the actnarial liability ut December 3)
* 5% increuse 270 296

22) (246)

» 3% decrease
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Acituarial assumptions have been reviewed un the basis of wrends
noted ut the end of 2001. The discount rate of the plan for 2002
and the following years remains unchanged at 5%, and the
success rate remains unchanped compared to 1999 and 2000,

The impact of the revision of actuaris! ssSumptions is accounted
for as described in «Early Rctirement Plan for French civil

\ servaatsn, Note 2. A charge of € 210 million was recorded within
aSpecial items, net» in 2001 Nate 24),

Early rctirement payments made under the plan since i
initiation on September [, 1996 amount to € 1,743 million
(including € 492 million in 2001), covercd by an cquivalent
cumulative reversal of provision at December 31, 2001,

Post-retirement benefits other than pensions

The actusrial liability for post-reticcment benefis of € 149
- million at December 31, 200! (€ 140 million at December 31,
2000) has been determined using a discount rate of 5%.

Equant CVR provision

As described in Note 3, the amount of € 2,077 million covers the
maximum payment risk of the CVR,

Frovision of commitment related (o NTL preferred shares

As described in Note 8, the amount of € 811 million covers the
risk of loss an the call and put oprions contracted with financial
instinations.

Chher long-term liabllities

11 2001, the other long-term liabilities include:

- fixed assec supplicr payubles for € 209 million;

- deferred income for a total amount of € 160 million relating 1
Orange ple. Deferred income relates to the net credits arising
from in-substance carly cxcinguishment («in substance
defeasancen) of drawdowns under finance leases (Note 28). This
is amortizud 10 the statement of income over the Jegse term on a
straight-linc busis;

- debt for an amount of € 690 million related to a sale operation
entered into with a bank of future France Telecom reccivables
from the French State related o years 2002 to 2008. The
commitments made by France Telecom are described in note 28;

- Orange SA's vendor finsncing arrangements with cquipment
mamufacturers for the construction of the UMTS network, as
follows:

At December 31, 2001
Origin  Maturity  Equivalentin Antounts

al milliensof - drawn
curren euroy in millions of
cy curus
MC 2003 270 234
$)]
Euro 2004 470
GBy’ 2004 10 .
Total 750 234

(1) Multicurrency in Euro equivalent

19, OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

At December 31, 2000, other current hiabilitics included;

- the debt relaed 1o the acquisition in 2000 from
Dewtsche Telekom of its investment in Wind scttled
in July, 2001(€ 2.4 billion);

- the payable to E.On, rcialed to the acquisition of
Orunge Communications SA (€ 1.0 billion} settled
through Orange SA shares in the six months ended
June 30, 200%. Upon transfer of the shares in 2001,
put and call options were entered inty (See Notwe 28);

- the gecurity issucd in favor of Vodafone following
the purchase of France Telecom shares in August,
2000 in connection with the Orange plc acquisition
(€ 2.2 billion), settied in March 2001,
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Scttlement of thesc liabilities during the year cxplains the
movements between 2000 and 20001 of the other current
liabilitics.

20.  MINORITY INTERESTS

Changes in minority interests arc as follows:

2001 2000 1999
_{in millions of curos)

Opening balance 2,036 1,369 779
» Result for the yeur (714) (52) (19%)
¢ Issuance of share capitat to

minority interests

74 299 134

o Effect of acquisitions and

divestitures 6,802 386 646

» Appropriation of net result
(123) (213) )

» Translation adjustment 91 13 79
¢ Otherchanges - 134 -
Closing balances 8,101 2,036 1,369

In 2001, the effect of acquisitions and divestitures refate mainly
to the public offuring of approximately 13% of the capital of
Orange, the Equant/Glabal One transactions and the dilutions in

Wanadoo for the Freeserve and {ndice Multimedia acquisitions

{sce Note 3), as well as Norcl/Telecom Argentina being
accounted for using the equiry methodl,

At Deceraber 31, 2001, minority interests refate to Orunge SA
and its subsidiary for an amount of € 4204 million, to the
Fyuant/Globsl One group fur € 1,532 million snd (0 Wanadeo
for € 1,507 million.

2) « SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

At December 31, 2001, the share capital of France Telecom
amounts 1o € 4,615,327,772 and comprises 1,153,831.943
ordinary shares of par value € 4, For the year cnded Deceinber
31, 2001, the weighted average number of ordinary sharvs in
cirvulation amounted to 1,103,126,514 shares and the weighted
average nwnber of ordinary and dilutive sharcs amounted 1o
1,176,996,343 shares.

‘The «FT law» providcs notably that the French State remains the
majority shureholder. The State owns 55.5% of France
Telecom"s shure capital at December 31, 2001.

Changes in share capitul

During 1999, France Telecom perfonned two capital increuses,
as follows:

« The conversion of the share capital into Eures, giving a
nominal value of € 4 per share, through incorporation of
rescrves for € 193 million;

* 1,340 ordinary sharcs were issued as part of the conversion
right of convertible notes open since Docember 7, 1999, for
€ 107,200, including premium.

tn 2000, France Telecom ;

v incrcased irs sharc capital through the issuance of
129,201,742 new shares with par value of € 4, representing
€ 516,8 million, in connection with the acquisition of
Orange plc from Mannesmann on August 22, 2000, The
premnium attached o cach share issued amounted to € (36.2,
and totaled € 17,597.3 million;

s issued 14,300 ordinary sharss as pan of the conversion right
of convertible notes open since December 7, 1999 for € |1
million, including promium.

In 2001, there have been no operations on share capital,
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Convertible hotes

ln 1998 and 200], convertible notes were issued for a total
amount of € 5.5 billion (See Note 13). The maximum number of
shares to issue upun conversion or exchange is respectively 25.4

million and 48.5 million,

Through the pewers vested in it by the Annual General Meeting
of Junc 21. 2000, the Board of Dircetors of France Telecom has
the authority for 26 inonths from such date to issuc shares or
instrumeints giving access to France Telecom share capital. The
cumulative nominal amount of share increases (ncluding both
newly issued shares or shares issuable upon coaversion or
exercise of securities and the aggregate cumulative noming!
amount of debr inswuments may both not exceed € 300 million.
No issues have been made in 2001 under this authorty.

Purchase of the company's own shares

At the Ordinary and Extraordinary Gencral Mccting held on May
31, 2001, the company’s shareholders authorized the Board of
Directors 10 purchase France Telecom shares representing up o
10% of the capital. At December 31, 2001 France Telecom held
48.5 million of its own shares, for a pgross amount of € 5,002
million, representing 4.2% of the shar: capital. At December 31,
2000, France Telecom held 15.4 million France Telccom sharcs
(representing 1,3% of its share capital).

During the year ended Decewmber 31, 2001, France Telecom
purchused 64.6 million shares at an average price of € 103.37.
The acquisitions reselt mainly from wwo purchases in March
2001 concerning 64.) million shures for un smount of € 6,65
bitlion in accordance with the agreement sign?d oo February 28,
200! between France Telecom and Vodafene (See Note 3).

During the year ended December 31, 2001, France Telecum sold
31.5 millien shares at an average price of € 56.71, incloding the
conlribution to the SITA foundation of 30.9 million shares for the
acquisition of Equant (See Note 3). The result of these sules is

offser against conselidated reserves for an amount of € 1,271
million, net of tax (€ 778 million),

The purchasc on March 25, 2002 of the remaining France
Telecom shares held by Vodafone (See Note 28) will reduce
sharcholders' equiry by € 4.9 billion. Additionslly, if France
Telecom or Deutsche Telekom exercise their cross uptions (See
Noic 28), it would have the effect, on the basis of quoted inarket
value of France Telecom shares at December 28, 2001, of
reducing sharcholders' equity by € 920 million,
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The table below sets out main operaling indicators per
segment for the last three years:
22 - SEGMENT INFORMATION

As a result of the reorganization in 2001 of its global Orumge  Winsdm  Flrcdfhe, Fixcd fime,  Eumine  Towt
services to businesses under Equant and of the whomnd  vlecang Mo and  France
e . o . dma duta arher Telatom
rcorg'nmzanon in 2000 of ns. mobile telephony rvkaln  sereks -
activitics under Orange SA and its consumer [nternet n onthines of cure) Fonts  Imermario
activity under Wanadoo, France Telecom has redefined ol
its segments as follows: At December 34, 2001
= The segment "Orange" includes worldwide mobile Tolal Saley 13087 s v vam  eam e
telephony services, in Francc and the United EATTOA 3288 () 1908 1163 3w
Kingdom, as contibuted to Orange S.A. in 2000, Depescistion amd (1 b4t A oMn (e Wy ean
including Orange plc from its date of acquisition amurticttion
by France Telecom (i.c. for 4 months in 2000). Operating incerns
befire ipocial items 1,010 (123} 4,457 (250) (64} 5418
*  The segment "Wanadoo™” includes Intemnet Access,
. . . . ¢ 14!
Portals, c-Merchant, Direciories and Application Purehure cfang e
o - . and inngble p%scys :
Service Provider (ASP) activities contributed in :
- UMTS liconses m - - - . mn
2000 to Wanadoo S.A.
+ ex¢luding UMTS 4156 1H N8 1,906 - 809}
*  The segment "Fixed line, voicc and data services ligsases
In France" mainly includes the activities within Avergemunborst D97 R T e
France as an operator of fixed telephony, data ainployets?

transmission, broadeasting and cable television.

«  The segment "Fixed linc, voice and data services -
Intcrnational" includes the same activitics outside
/' France (notably Equant).

France Telecom segments may cvolve in the fumre,
along with France Telecom’s sirategic choices. France
Telecom evaluates the performance of its scgments and
allocales its resources based on EBITDA results, which
represents the operaung income before "specific aon-
recurring items” and "depreciation and amonization”.

The "Elimination and other items” column includes
intcr-segment transaction eliminations and other non.
material reconciliation items to France Telecom
{inancial statemeats.
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The "Pixed line, voice and data services” segment outside of

Total

Orange  Wanadoo Fiaed fire, Firet Kiimina- Triad
vocsard  loe.  fiomund  France France includes Equont for the last six months of 2001, On a
dafa srvicey  vvice nther Teleeom
M Eranst  sngdai scope comperable to 2001 (pro forma), the sales, EBITDA and
in mflions of < L - . , ,
i miliont of csroc) servica operating income before special items of the “Fixed line, voice
m;m and data services" scgment outside of France for 2000 would
ana have represented respectively € 6,988 milhon, € 1,235 million
At Dicermboer 31. 2080 and € (12) million,
Tota) $ales 5,025 L1 207" 393 (1.91) 33474
BUITDA 1,658 (67) LNLH 1.0¢4 0 10.807
Depreeration omd 01.00%) (62) (3.516) 007) (a0 (5726) Geographical breakduwn
aneaealion
Operating invome bifor Year ¢nded December 31,
special e 833 (129) 1426 )y sk
(in millions of 2001 2000 1999
Pucchase of wagible and curos)
intangible sssels :
- Sales 43,026 33,674 27,233
- UMTS ticenies MR . 7,06K
) France 27,626 24,986 23,793
< Cratuiting UMTS 2489 96 2.363 33y e
ligenzes Other 15,400 8,688 3,480
17183 562 13843 s B TY 713 .
AvGrage nunbor of * ‘ I8 Fixed assets ™ 49,917 50,912 29,889
_eplayees®
France ™ 20,431 22,171 22,882
At Deeember 31, 1999
Other 29,486 28,741 7.007
] 452 810 20,704 273 086 2739
Tyt Saley N
EDITOA 75 63 4437 5 363 " tanpible and inwangible, excluding goodwill.
— @ @ e (184) ENTY T B includes all shared network structures, nolably the European
. buckbone.
antertizalion
Qpsruinye ngothe hefare
__zpecial itany 13 39 716 (%9} {7 4,728
Putshise of Wngble ang . 23. PERSONNEL COSTS
e 1,400 1 2,550 TENCL Y
Avernge namber of 9,061 3)83 141959 16, 7ok "t 174,262 Yeal’ eﬂded Dmmbefal
~emplyyees™ , s
(in millions of euros, except 2001 2000 1959
M Liom January 1, 2001, ssles for the fixed-line scuvity of Prance Telcsom number of employees)
inclodes mcome frum faed-line fo mobile calls invoiced o fixed-ling
swibsenbers.
B Avernpe full lime equivaieats Average headcount (full time 206,184 188,866 174,262
cquivalents
Sales, EBITDA, and operating income before special items of the
Orange segment in 2000 includes Orange plc and its subsidiaries
9 e
for 4 inoaths, On a scope compurable to 200 (pro Jorma), the Personnel costs 2o 5993 p
. e ‘ 6,88 , A7
seles; EBITDA and operating income before special items would * Wages and salaries
have represented respectively € 12,059 million, € [.765 millivn « Soclal charges 2.593 2,406 2,212
and € 383 million tor 2000. 9482 8,399 7.489
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Of whom upproximately §1.6% were French civil servants at
December 31, 2001,

Excluding carly redrement plan for French civil servants and
emplayce profit sharing

o

SPECIAL ITEMS

24.
Year ende December 31
2001 2000 1999
(in milliens of euros)
French eacly retirement plan ™ (210) (225) 238)

(11}

28.

See Note 18,

OTHER NON-OPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE),

NET

In 2001, the other non-pperating incomnc {expense) relates mainly

100

*  non-operating cxpenses for & total amount of € 9,380
wmillion (€ 7,882 million, nct of tax) of which (i) € 5,910
inillion (€ 4,581 million net of tax) relatc to the
valuation allowance on NTL's common and prefesred
stocky us described in Wote 8, (1) € 2,077 million
(€ 2,077 million, nct of tax) rclate to the provision for
losses and charges on the Equant CVR (scc Nate 3 and
Note 17) and (i) € 1.393 million (€ 1,224 million, net
of tax) relute 1o MobilCain {sci Note 7);

» us well ag other non-operating income {cxpense) scr out
below:

Ycar endcd December 31

0m 2000 1999
(in milllons of euros)
Gain ot {os$ on divestment 576 5,544 603
Dividends revcived 262 255 180
Dilution resalt @ 1,993 2,096 -
Other provision movements ' (694)  (3,931) -
Cost of sale of receivables (503) - -
Other {158) ) (16)
Tutal 3476 3957 167

o

@

W

1\

Includes in 2001 the result of the divesiments of investments in Sema
Grovp plc (€401 million), Sprint Fon (€181 million) and
FTICHSTMicroclectronics (€ 1 NGE million) as well as a gaib of
€ 482 million {ollowing the determiaation of the fair value of Global
One in the context of the contribution of Global One to Equant.

Also inglutles €705 million relating w the pain on salc of office and
mixed technical buildings (0 » cansortium of investors in 2001 {Nole
6).

Morcover, dug tu the provision recorded at Decernber 31, 2000, the
IPO of Orunge SA did rot have 2 significant incidence on tic non-
opcrating result.

Includes in 2001 a gain of €1 085 nsillion related W he Indice
Multimedia and Freeserve uransactiony and a gain of € 934 million
following the contribution of Infosirada 1o Wind (Note 3),

In 2001, the other movements in provision relate mainly 10

«a net reversal, for € 396 million i the provisiob sct up )
December 31, 2060 for the Equant/Glabal One operation,

- wprovision of € 134 million relating to TE.SAM.

- provisions relating fo the realizable value of cermain non
sirategic foreign subsidiaries including € 141 million reluting
10 Intelig,

including € 419 million relating w the sale of the camy back
reccivable (Notwe 26) and € 79 million relating to the Sceuritizution of
receivables with & Fonds Contmun de Créances,

16 - INCOME TAXES

Yrance Telecom files & consolidated tax retum for all
French subsidiaries owned in excess of 95%,
Following thc Orange public offering, Orange SA und
its French subsidiarics are no lenger in 2001 within the
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scope of the France Telecom consolidated tax regime
but have their own tax regime starting in 2002,

Following thc Wanadoo public offering {n July 2000,
Wanadoo SA and its French subsidiaries bave their
own consolidated tax regime from 200} onwards.

Income before income taxes, minority interesis and
goodwill amortization of the companies and cquity in
net result of affiliates is as follows:

Year ended December 31,

(in millions of curog) 2001 2000 1999

Frr:nchy companies (2,938} 7,423 4.385
Forcign companies @310)  (1,135)  (641)
Total (5,248) 6,288 4,244

Tncome tax for the year is the result of the application of the
forecast ycar-end effective tux mute on the result before tax at
Decernber 31, 2001, Deferred taxes are based on determined tax
rates, i.c. 36.43% for 2001 and 35.43% for 2002,

In 2001, France Tclecom SA and companies within the scope of
its consolidated tax regime recorded a significant tax loss, which
is mainly due to the Orange capital public offering and to the sale
of Frunce Telecom shares to SITA as part of the purchasc of
Equunt. A carry back of € 1,630 million and a loss carry-forward
of €2,231 million resulted from this tax loss.

In Dccember 2001, France Telecom sold the following
Govermment receivables to a financial institution:

* a receivable of € 235 million rusulting from the
option of carrying back the tax loss related o fiscal
year 2000

e A receivablc of an estimated amount of € 1,471
million resulting from the option of carrying back
the tax loss related to fiscal ycar 2001, As
compensation. France Telecom reccived notes worth
€ 1.111 million, -

Non transferable tax loss cary-forwards gave rise to the
recognition of a credit of € [,453 million in the statement of
income telated to creation of a deferred tax asset, with € 778
million recorded directly against consoliduted reserves for the
part resulting from the wx effect of the salc of France Telccom
shares (see Note 21).

France Telecom considers that. on the basis of budgets and
strategic plans of France Telocom SA- and of the companics
within the scope of its consolidated tax regime, (i) no current
income 1ax will be duc before 2009 by France Telecom SA's
consolidated tax regimv, (ii) the recognized deferred income tax
assct rosolung from France Telecom SA's loss carry-forwards
will be recovered through taxable profits expected for furure
fiscal years in its activitics as fixed line operator in France,
activities historically profitable. Moreover, due to thege results
and to the tax mcthod of reputed deferrcd amortization
(umortissemenrs réputés Jifférds), the part of the loss carmy-
forwards that cannot be carried forward indefinitely under French
tax law, should be entirely used within the 5-year legal limit. The
remainder of the loss can be indefinitely carried forward. On this
basis net deforred tax assers arc cstimated at € 3.6 billion at the
end of 2006,
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Income taxcs can be analyzed as follows:

recognized in the context of the contribution of Global One to
Equant.
Defetred taxes asscts/(liabilities) by nawre of

temporary difference before compensation by tax entity
arc analyzed as follows;

At December 31,

Income (charge) Year ended December 31,
(in millions of euros) 2001 2000
- ¥rance Telccom SA 1,630 76
Carry-buck
- Dther (788)___“ (1,666)
Current tax 842 (1,5%0)
- France Telecom $A 1,453 -
tux loss camry
forward
- Diseounting charge
for entities of the tax (750) -
group France
Telecom SA
- Other 1,387 277
Deferred (axes 2,09¢ 717
Total taves 2,932 Qé 13)

The reconciliation between the Freach statutory tax rate
-and the effective rate of income (ax crediv expense is as
follows:

Inconie (charge) Year ended December 31,

(in milligns of euros) 101 2000
Legal 18x rate 36.43% - 31.76%
Theoretical lax 1,912 (2,374)
e Permancnt differences 2,844 1,433
¢ Losses from subsidiaries

nof included in the French

consolidated tax regime (1,426) (1,154)
» [ffect of reduced tx rate - 182
E{Tective tax . 2912 (1.313)

Purmanent differences for fiscal year 2001 ure mainly impacted
by (i) the difference between book value and tax value of the
Orange SA shares sold in the [PO), (i1) the dilution gains related
10 Wanadoo and Wind, as well as (iti) the effect of the gain

(in millions of curos) 2001 2000
Early retirement plan ) 1,451 1169
Imptirment of long-lived assefs 437 453
Non deductible provisions 1,768 1,232
Employee prafit sharing a5 51
France Telecom SA tax loss curry

forwurd 2,999
Other tax loss carry forwards 3,320 2,181
Orther deferred 1ax assets 782 720
Accclernted tax deprecintion (341) (248)
Other deferred tax liabilitics (922) (1,094)

Discounting charge (750) -

Depreciation (3.022) (1,965)
Net proup deferred tax assels 5,767 2,798

This net position is presented as fellows in the balance sheet:

At December 31,
(in millions of evros) 2008 2000
Net long-tenn deferred 1ax asscts 5369 2532
Net short-term deferred ux asyets 1,102 ),60Y
Net long-term deferred tax liabilities {330) (£30)
Net short-term deferved tax liabilities {374) (512)
Total 5,767 — _ 2,749

A € 750 million discounting cffect has been recorded against
deferred tax assets of the France Telecom SA's consolidated ux
regime based on the anticipated timing of reversal,

Allowances against deferrcd rax assets relate principally to
tax loss carry forwards in new subsidiaries or subsidiaries
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operatling in emerging markets for an amount of € 2,923
million (€ 1,859 million at December 31, 2000). A part of
these tax loss carry forwards will be recognized when the
activity of the subsidiaries becomcs durably profitable.

27.  RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

" Telecommunications  services  to  French govemnmenial
authorities, which are one of France Telecom’s largest
customers, as well as those o its various regional and Jocal
suthorities are provided at market prices. Subsequent to the
scparstion of France Telecom and postal services (La Poste) in
1987 @ number of transactions have subsisted relating
particularly to personnel und shared properties.

The wansuctions and balances summsrized below urose in the
ordinary course of business between France Telesum and related
partics.

Amounts receivable from related parties

At December 31,
2000 2000 1999

(n mittions of curos)

Retated party

Sprint 20 20
La Poste 50 54 34
Sutehite organizations 92 28 1

Amounts poyable to related parties

(in mibions of evros) At Decemnber 31,

2001 2000 1999
Relnted party
Sprint ‘ 1¢ 10 q
La Poste 30 3l 50
Satcllite orpapizations 147 62 3

Significant transuctions with reloted panies

Income/{expenscs or
investments)

(in millions of euras)

Year ended December 31,

Related Nature of 2001 2000 1999
_party transaction
La Poste Personnet - (24) ¥}
progeams
Ceommonly 71 28 15
Jmanspediervices ..
Satellite Expenses (248) (169) (88)
organizations
—— Ingome 30 - s
Sprint Invoiced services 3K 32 19
Expenscs @) 14
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28,  COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Off balamce sheet commitments related to purchases of

network cquipment and terminals

In the ordinsry course of its sctivitics, France Tzlecom cnters
into purchase contracts with network equipment manufacturers
and into supply contracts with suppliers of terminals and other
equipment. Management believes that there is no significant risk
of ﬁnahpial loss from these contracts.

Off balance sheet commitments related to network
construction and operation

In connection with the award ef licenses, concession contracts ur
acquisition of businesses, France Tclecom is committed to
certain obligations imposed by administrative or regulstory
authorities relating to network coverage, quality of service and
tariffs, In-some instances, France Telecom is required o provide
comfort lettcrs to financial instinitions relating to bunk
guaraptees given to relcvant authoritics, Management belicves
that France Telecom has the ability to mcct these obligations to
administrative of regulatory authorities.

Off balance sheet commitments relsted to Jeases

Leases

Frunce Telecom leases Jand, buildings, equipment, vehicles and
other items under lcasc agreements cxpiring at verious dates
during the next 10 ycars.

Moreover, as pant of the divestment of part of its buildings (Note
6), France Telecom is committed o re-lease these buildings
exoept for certain assets 1o be vacated in the short-teom,

Management cxpects that leases that expire muy or may not be

renewed or replaced by other Jeases in the normal course of

business.

Rental cxpense under operating leases in the ycar ended
December 31, 2QQ| amounts to € 8§31 million ( € 473 miltion in
2000 and € 3)3 million in 1999),

The iable below shows future minimuim leuse payments due
under nonscancelable capital and operating loases at December
31, 2001, including those contracted within the context of the
divestment of part of the real cstate:

Capital  Operating

lease lease
_(in milliona of curos)

2002 4] 881
2003 Cow 745
2004 7 656
2005 2 616
2006 1 702
2007 and Lhereafler 4 1,380
Tolal minimum future lease payments 75 4,930

Less: interest payments (2)
Present value of minimom cominitmenis 73

' iacluding thosc contracted in relation to the sale of purt of the resl
cstate

Strategic rechnical buildings

On October 31, 2001, France Telecom sigaed a promise o sell
42 technical sirategic buildings which will be re-lcased as part of
a capital lease contract, The sale and the capita! Jeasc related to
these buildings are planncd by June 30, 2002.

UTE leuses

As part of cross-operation leases (QTE lease) with distinct third
parties, France Telecom gave and wok for hire cerain
tclecommunications ¢quipment. The crossed rental flow and
France Telecom remuncration were prepaid st the outset of the
contracts and, for this reason, are not shown in the above table.
Of this remuneration, thc portion which pays for the guarantee
agsinst third party commitinents given by France Telecom is
tukcn as income over the period of this puarantee. France
Telecom cstimates hat the nisk of the guarantee, which amounts
to €750 million st December 31, 200}, being drawn upon is
ncgligible.

Orunge in substance defeasance

As patt of the lease agreements concluded in 1995 and 1997,
Orange plc has deposited amounts cqual to the present value of
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jts rental obligations with UK financial institutions to securc
letters of credit issued by these insttutions to the lessors in
connection with Orange plc’s rentsl obligations. These funds,
which totaled € 1,247 million at December 31, 2001 (€ 1,221
million at December 31, 2000 and € 1,192 million in 1999),
together with the interest earned thereon, will be used to settle
Orange ple’s rental obligations under the leascs.

These in substance early extinguishmests of lcase commitments
result in the offsct of the deposit amount and the capital leasc
obligution, and result in a net credit which has been reflected in
the consolidated balance sheet as deferred income that will be
amortized 1o the statement of income over the Jease tenn on 4
straight  line basis. This includes a provision, based on
management assessment of likely outcomes, for passible furure
costs arising for variation in intcrest rates or tax rates,

Accordingly the rclated capitsl leasc obligations are not shown in
the above table.

Off balance sheet commitments related to investment
$ecurities and own shares held

As part of the agreements between certain companies of the
group and their parners within other subsidiaries or consortia,
clauses relating 1o put or call options exist over shares held by
partners as well as clauses velating to the transfer of such shures
of which the most significant are:

cerc
In July 2000, France Tclecom sold its remuining 17.7 million

CCIC shares for USS$ 505 million, i.c. USE 28.5 per share (Note
8).

Since France Telecom remains contracrually exposed to the risk
of stock exchange fluctuations for the shares sold, for a period to
June 2002, the sale result has been deferred until the end of this
contractual commitment.

Ll

The unwinding of this operation on the basis of the share price of
CCIC as at December 28, 2001 would have lead France Telecom
to pay an amount of € 357 million to the purchascrs of the shares,
fe55 at this datc than the deferred gain on divestment,

Put and call opiions over NTL preference shares

As part of the transaction described in note 7, France Telecom
eatered into an agreement on February 17, 2000, and amended on
Deccmbgr 21, 2001, with financial institutions wherchy Frunce
Telccom may cxercise, upon payment, o call option over ull the
NTL preferred shares held by the financial insticutions, at the
initial acquisition price iw. USS 1.1 billion. The financial
instituions may each scll all their shares 10 France Telecom at
initial scquisition price, notably if this cull option is not exercised
by France Telecorn before March 28, 2003 or under cermain
circumstances,

A provision for risk of € 811 million has been recorded on the
basis of this commitment at December 31, 200) (Note 8). The
residual exposurc on this commitment amounts to € 437 million
included in the € 1,806 million mentioned in Note 8.

MobilCom

Orange has a call option to purchase 21.6 million shares (33% of
the outstanding MobilCoin shares) held by MobilCom's founding
shareholder, which is exercisable between 2003 and 2006.
Morcover, the founding sharcholder has 2 put option aguinst
Orange rcparding these sharcs excrcissble in certain Jimijted
circumstances (if the France Telecom group acquires shares such
that it owns more shares than the founding shareholder, or if a
major disagreement arises and the Framoe Telecom group
imposes its position on the founding sharcholder theough the
conractual mediation process, or if the France Telecom group
breaches  certain  imaterial  obligations of the cooperation
framework agreement with MobilCom and MobilCom’s founding
sharcholder). The exercise price of the put and call options is 1o
be determined based upon formal cvalugtion opinions by
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internationally recognized investment banks, using multi criteria

valuations.

If MobilCom is unable, through existing own capital resources
and loan facilities and through additional [inancing that it
procutes on its own, to tommence UMTS operations, France
Telecom SA has a commitment under the terms and conditions
set out in this agrecment and on the basis of a budget and
business plan agreed by the France Tclecomn group to provide
loans dircetly to MobilCom or to gusrantee third party loans to
the extent of any financing necessary until the cornmencement of
UMTS:’operations.

The conditions of application of the coopcration framework
agreeinent and of France Telecom SA's financing commitments
are curreatly the subject of disagreements with the founding
sharchotder. A discussion is in progross, of which the France
Telecom group cannot predict the outcome.

Moreover, France Telecom group inanagement considers, to the
best of its current knowledge, that the increase in borrowings
recorded in the financial statciments of the France Telccom group
could reach a maximum of €6 billion (0 €7 billion within 1§
months should Orange have to fully consolidatc MobilCom, of
which the cxisting credit facilities of €6.2 billion are non
recourse to the France Telecomn group. In this case, the assets of
MobilCom, mainly represented by the UMTS license, would be
reassessed based on the new business plan set up by Orange, and
taking into account the existence or not of likcly consolidation in
the mobilc market in Germany. France Telgcom group
management considers that the exceptional depreviation of the
investment in MobilCom recorded in 200! transiates implicitly a
loss of valuc of the license compared to ity historic cost,

Over und above the application of the contractual arrangements,
the sharing between France Telecom SA and Orange of any
tinancial consequences of the disagreements with the founding
sharcholder will be determined on the basis of a faieness opinion
issued by intemationally recognized investment banks designated
by the independent dircctors of France Telecoin SA and Orange.

TP S4

Pollowing the sale by the Polish government in 2000 and 2001 of
shares in the Polish operator TP SA. the consortium created by
France Tclecom and Kulezyk Holding beld 47.5% of TP SA at
October 31, 2001. The consortium also hold a call option
enabling it (o acquire 2.5% of the capital of TP SA plus onc
share, at any time between Januery 1, 2002 and December 31,
2002, at a pricc equal to the average closing share price of TP SA
for the 100 truding duys priot 1o the exercise of the call option,
plus 25%. Following this acquisition, the consortium would also
hecome the majority shaccholder of TP SA. Moreover, the
consortium also holds a call option emabling it to acquire a
further 10% of the capital of TP SA In the cvent that the Polish
State were to offer TP SA shares, an option excreisable at the
same price os that proposed to institutional investors within this
offer. The shareholder agreciment between France Televom and
Kulezyk Holding includes the following clauses relating to the
transfer of TP SA sharcs: (i) France Telecom has a presmption
right over any transfer of TP SA shares by Kulczyk Holding : (i%)
France Telecom has a call option enabling it to purchase from
Kulezyk Holding its original investment of 10% in TP SA and
its investinent of 3.57% ufter July 2006 or earlier in the evens of
change of control or of viglation of Kalezyk Holding ‘s
obligations, at a price equal to the higher of the acquisition cost
plus accrued intcrest and market value of the shares; (iii}
Kulczyk Holding holds a put option enabling it to sell to France
Telecom its oniginal investment of 0% in TP SA and its further
investment of 3.57% between October 2003 and January 2007, at
a price cqual 1o its acquisition cost plus accrucd inlerest less
dividends paid; the banks who financed the purchasc by Kulezyk
Holding of TP SA shargs can slso demand that France Telecom
takes possession of all the sharws which the banks may hold as
security au a price cqual to the residval eredit plus intercst. The
amount of this commitment amoums 1o approXimstely
€ 1.7 billion at December 31, 2001,

E0n

Fallowing the agreements in relsdon 10 the purchase by France
Telecom of the 42.5% interest which E.On held in the capital of
Orange Communications SA (Switzerland), approximately 75%
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of the paymonts due to E.On were made through the dJclivery of
102.7 million Orénge SA shares at the 1PO. In this context,
Prance Telecom sgreed put and call options with E.On which
were the subject of an amendment on January 28, 2002, Under
the wrms of thesc amended options, in June 2002, (i) E.On has
the right 10 sell to France Telccoim the Qrange SA shares which it
holds at a price of € 9.25 per share (i.c. a total of € 950 million)
and (ii} France Telecom has the right to purchase the Orange SA
shares which E.On holds at a price of € 11.25 per shure (i.c. a
1otal of € 1,155 million), E.On has the ability to scll its Orange
SA shares in an orderly manmer. Given the value in use of
Orange no provision was set up at December 31, 2001.

Wind Infostrada

France Telecom und Enel agreed to undertake an initial public
offering of Wind as s00n a5 possible after the merger on Junuary
2, 2002 of Infostrada and Wind. France Telecom halds an option
to purchase a postion of the Wind shares held by Enel, with a
floor and 2 ceiling price, sufficient to increase its equity interest
in Wind 10 76.6% of Encl's interest. This option can be cxercised
at any mowment between July 31, 2003 and January 3i, 2004
Moreover, France Telecom also holds a put option of its Wind
shates to Enel at mucket value on a 100% basis (as defined by
independent experts) exercisable at any moment in the cvent of a
disagrecment between France Telecom and Lncl conceming
Wind. Put and call options are also planned in the cvent of a
blockage, violation of obligations or change in ownership of the
shareholders.

San Salvador CTF

France Telecom sold in March 2000 24.5% of the shares which it
held in the capital of Estel Co, LLC ("Estel”) 1o Central Americs
Comm\miqdrions LLC ("CAC"). In the conicxt of this sale,
France Telecom granted CAC a put option exercisable in cuse of
default of CAC under the terms of the eredit agreement briween
CAC und Citybank. The price varies between:

s $134.8 million for ull 490 CAC shsrcs in Este] before
Scptember 16, 2003 latest failing 10

*  §10L.1 million between September 17, 2003 and
Scptember |6, 2004, then

s 5674 wmillion botween Septemnber 17, 2004 and
Septecmber 16, 2005, and

= $33.7 million between Scptember 15, 2005 and June
16, 2007

Equant Contingent Value Rights (CVR)

In the context of the acquisition of Equant, France Telecom
issued CVR to certain beneficiaries (Note 3). This commitment

" resuleed in a provision for the maxiinum risk (Notes 3 and |8).

France Telecom Dominicana

‘The joint sharcholder has an option to seil its 14% interest in the
company between 2003 and 2007 at market value.

BITCO (Thailand)

If one of the shareholders does not respect their commitments,
the other shareholders can at any moment excrcise a call option
equal ro 80% of market value or 2 put option over their own
sharcs at a price equal to 120% of market value. Moreover, given
the current legislation in Thailand, the group can in no case
increase its interest in BITCO beyond its current intercst of 49%.

TPS

Francc Telccom signed with TFI in December 200] a
memorandum of understanding to sell its share in the satellite
offer TPS for €128.7 inillion (Note 7).

Commitments linked to holdings of own shares
Own shares of France Telecom held by Dewtsche Telekom

France Telecom has an oplion to purchase, st any time betwcen
January 1, 2002 and Janvary 3], 2003, 20,492,292 of its shures,
representing 1.8% of its share capital, held by Deutsche Telekom
at & pricc detcomined on the basis of the then prevailing market
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price. If Francc Telecom does pot excreise this option, Deutsche
Telekom may exercise a put option requiring France Tclecom to
purchase these shares on January 31, 2003 under the sume terms.

Own shares of France Telecom held by Vodufone

As described in notc 3, France Telecom is commitred to
repurchasc all the France Telecom shares held by Vodafone in
connection with the acquisition of Orange plc. The third and final
tranche of the repurchase, of 49.7 million shares, is lo be
performed on March 25, 2002, for € 4.9 billion.

Cummitments linked to saley of receivables
Securltization of receivables

As part of the Sceuritization program sct out in Note 9, the
beneficial interests subscnibed by France Telecom in the Fonds
Commun de Créances hyve been pledged.

Sales of carry back receivables

As part of the sale of camry back receivables resulting from the
choice to carry back tax losses for the years 2000 and 2001, as
set out in Note 26, France Telecom has pguasanteed the
receivables sold to the credit jnstitution and is committed to
inderamify it for any crror or inexacrtitude noted in the amounts or
nature of the receivables sold.

Sale of future receivabies from the French State

As pm‘of the sale of future ceceivables from the French State sct
out in Note 18, France Telecom has gusranteed to the assignee
institution the existence and amouat of the receivables sald and is
committed to indemnify it to this regard.

Sundry commitments

Apart from the commitments set out in Notes 14 and 15, France
Telecom has issued no puarantee on its {inancial debt nor is it
bound by any commitment beyond those nonmally subscribed in
financing contracts,

In the ordinary course of business, the group gives certain
guarsntees of which the most significant at Deccmber 31, 2001
are as follows:

s Sharcs and sundry other asscts hold by the Orange group
have been pledged 1 lending financia) institutions (or given
as securily), as collateral for bank loans and credit lines,
amounting to € 3,936 million, of which € 3,679 million has
been drawn at December 31, 2001

e A counter guarantee of € 169 million has been given to Encl
to cover the guaramec granted by Encl to financial
institutions in the context of Wind's deferred UMTS license
payment;

* A guarantee of & maxiimum of € 104 million has been given

. 10 a joint venture 10 be operated in common between Orange
Sverige AB und the two other operators in Sweden, as pan
of a nctwork sharing contract;

¢ Guarantees of maximum € 49 million and € 58 miliion
respectively have been given to cquipment supplicrs in the
context of the network rollout of BITCO in Thailand. The
first guarantec is valid for a five-month period from
November 30, 2001, The sccond guarantee also has
limited validity duration. In Fcbruary 2002, a new guarantee
of a maximum of US$ 175 million replaced these o
guarantees,

29.  LITIGATION AND CLAIMS

In the ordinury coutse of business, France Telecorm is involved in
a nuinber of legal, and arbitration proceedings and administcative
actions.

The costs associated with the lcgal pruceedings are only accrued
for when it is probable that a liability will be incurred and the
amount of that liability can be guantified or estimated within a
reasonable range. In the latter case, an allowancy is recorded (0

{
h

provide for the lower end of the range,

France Telecom believes that there are meritorious defenses to
ull theye claims. Although the ultimate resolution of such claims
cannot be predicted with cemainty, it is France Telecom's
opinion that their resolution will not have a material adverse
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cffect on its conmsolidaled operating results, its activity or
financial position.

FTML (Lebanon)

FTML and the Lebanese Mirnisiry of Past and
Telecommunivations agreed in 1994 2 Build, Operatc and
Transfer contract (BOT) for the construction and operation of a
GSM mobile telephony nerwork in the Lebanon. A similar
contract was granted to the competitor Libancell.

‘These two contracts arc the subject of disputes becween the
[cbanege governments and the two operators,

- on'June 14, 2001, thc Lebanese government notificd the
cancollation of the BOT contract of FTML and that of its
competitor, effective December 13, 2001, The cancellation
and the transfer are 10 give rise, under the BOT contracy, to
an indemnisation of each opcrator by the Lebancse
govemment which may be subject to an intemational
arbitration, under the French-Lebancse agreement of
prolcction of investments, in the absence of a plobal
agrezment in the context of the negotiation and the tender for
the two or three GSM mobile tclephony licenses in Lebunon,
snticipated within $ix months.

- prior to June 14, 2001 the government considered that the
operators had not respected certain clauses in their contracts,
and claimed indemnities. FTML relused these allegations
within the conlext of an intemational arbitration, temporarily
suspended unti) March 31, 2002 as part of a joint apreenent
between  FIMI  and  the Ministry of Post and
Telecommunications with the goal of finding a global
s¢lution o the dispute.

Cnmpctition law

France Telccom i5 subject to claims made by its competitors in
(ront of the: Competition Authotitics (Conveil de la concurrence)
or the [luropean Comimission for alicged abusc of dominant
position and anti competitive behavior, of which the most
significant claims are:

Fixed fine

o The Conseil de la concurrence following a double ¢laim by
Cégétel / Tele 2 ordered on December 19, 2001 that France
Telecom was to suspend immediately the coinmercialization
of four tariff offers until the other operators were able to
propose equivalent offers, France Telecom has three months
to migrate to new offers those customers who subscribed Lo
the offer.

Internet high-speed access

The France Tclecom group has been accused in severa] dispulcs
related to the different internet high-specd access markets,
susceptible to give rise to the promouncement of financial
sanctions or damages and interests against the group.

+  Under a decision on February 27, 2002, the Conseil de la
concurrence ordered France Telecom to  suspend
commercialization of the ADSL of Wanadoo Imeractive
in its agencies untl France Telecom provides to all
imternet access providers a computcrized tool cnabling
mays handling of high speed internet access requests with
France Telecomn. France Telecom has lodged an appeal to
cancel thig decision with the Puris Cour d'gppel.

s 9Telecom requested thae the Conseil de la concurrence
fine France Telecom for non respect of the decision of
the Conseil of February 18, 200}, which ordcred France
Telecom to propose the operators an ADSL access offer
cnabling them 0 compeote effectively both through the
pricc and the nature of services offered. On July 16,
.2001, the Conseil de la concurrence gnnounced a halt in
the procedure, to enable a full enquiry.

e On Deccmber 21, 2001, Wanadoo Interactive was
infonned by the Buropcan Cominission of claims against
the company's tarniffs for the high-spced internet services
Wanadoov ADSL «ad Pack X-Tense throughout 2001, The
Commission considers that the price policy of Wanadeo
Interactive since the beginning of 2001 coastitates an
abuse of dominunt position,
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30. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Pramindo Jkat

On February 20, 2002, the sharcholders of Pramindo [kat signed
with Pcrusahaan Pcrserosn  (Persora) PT  Telekommukasi
Indonesia TBK a2 memorandum of understanding to sell their
shares aL u price of USS 339 million (¢f which 40% for Franve
Telecom), which will be paid after the sale in ten quarterly
_payments with intcrest.

TOF

On Fcbruary 22, 2002, Frence Telecom signed a letter of
inteswion with the group Caisse des dépdts und the investment
funds Charterhouse Capital Development and CDC Equity
Capital'for the acquisition of 100% of the TDF group by a ncw
structure. This transaction would value the euticc TDF group
between € 2 billion and € 2.3 billion of which € 2 billien arc 10
Le paid to France Telecom upon the transaction and € 300
miltion (bearing intercst at 7% pec annuim) are (o be paid by the
investors to France Tclecom under the form of an increase in
price at the time of divestment of their shares and on the basis of
the return on investment achicved. France Tclecom is to
subscribe for 35% of this new structure.

3. COMPENSATION OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS AND THE EXECUTIVE MANAGEMENT
COMMITTEE

The apgregate amouit of remuneration allocated to directors
and members of the executive committee of France Telecom SA
amounted to approximatcly € §.27 million in 2001,

The directors of France Telecorn do not receive any
compensation  for tiwir services as  directors other than
reimbursement of ¢xpenscs incidental to their anendance at

Board of Directors mectings.
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The main changes in tonsolidation scope in 200} are set out

in Notes.3 and 7.

December 31, 2001

OF CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES AND

Orange Segment

Company Intercst Control Country
FULLY CONSOLIDATED
COMPANIES
Orsnge SA 84.17 84.17 France
Orange Int. Developments Lid 8417 100.00 Bahomas
Wirefree Services Belgium B4.17 100.00  Belgium
Mabisiur Corporate Soluticns 42.75 100.00  Belgium
Maohistur 4215 5079  Belgium
Vista Cellular 42.93 51.00 Bulswana
Cowmpany Carnerounaise de 88.92 100,00 Cameroon
Mobiles
Rapid Link 56.39 67.00 China
Company lvoirieanc d¢ Mobiles 71.54 85.00  fvury Coast
Orange A/S 45.10 100.00 Denmsrk
Orange Holding A/S 45.10 53,58 Denmurk
Wirefree Scrvices Denmark A/S 84.17 100.00  Denmark
Orange World, Inc. 84,17 10000 US
Wildfire Communications, lnc. 84,17 10000 US
laventmobile 7893  100.00 France
Mobile [nternct for Business 92.10 100.00 France
Orunge Caraibes B4.19  100.00 France
Orange Clients B4.19 10000 France
Orange Distribution 8419  100.00 France
Orange France SA 84.19 10000 France
Orange Réunion 84,19  100.00 France
Orange Prémotions B4.19  100.00 France
Orange Services 84,19 100.00 Frante
Orunge International SAS ¥4.17 100,00 France
Orange Supports & Consulting 84.19 10000 France
Rapp 6 8419  100.00 France
Telzea 52.73 75.50 Mauritius
Company Maigache de Mobiles 34,75 6590 Madagasear
Nutchtone 84.17 100.00  Netherlands
Duichtone Retail , 84.17 100.00  Netherlsnds
France Telecom Dominicana 72.38 86.00 Dominlcan
Republic
Oranpe Romania (MobilRom) 57.08 6741 Romania
Andneva 84.17 10000 UK
Orunge ple 84.17 100.00 UK
Oringe Cellular Services Lad $4.17 100,00 UK
Urange Mobile Data Lid 34.17 100.00 UK
Drange Puging (UK) (e §4.17 100.00 UK
QOrange Personal Convnunications 84.17 100.00 UK
Serviees Lid
Orange Retuil Lul H4,17 10000 UK

Orange Haldings Ltd et s¢s filiales 84.17 10000 UK
Orange Holdings (UK) Lid 84,17 100.00 UK
Orange Oversens Holdings n°2 Lid 84.17 100.00 UK

And its subsidiaries
Orange 3G LW 84.17 100.00 UK
The Point Communications Ltd 84.17 10000 UK
Globrel 54.10 6427 Slovakia
Globtel Net 71.54 85.00 Slovakia
Orsnge Sverige 42,45 97.96 Sweden
Orange Communications SA 43,96 99.75  Switzerland
("OCH")
PROPORTIONALLY
CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES
Darty France Telecom 42.10 50.00 France
Fidecall 42.10 50.00 France
EQUITY ACCOUNTED
COMPANIES
MobilCom AG 23 83 28.31  Germany
NewsTakes 21.04 25.00 US
Wind Telccomunicamian 22.37 26.58 Tty
Book2eat.com Roldings L 3513 4174 UK
Bangkok lnter Teletech Compauny 41.24 45,00 Thailand

(BITCO)
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Segment Wanadoo
Company Interest  Control  Counuy
FULLY:CONSOLIDATED
COMPANIES
Wanadoo SA 73.68 73.68 France
Wansadoo Belgium 73.68  100.00 Belgium
Wanadoo Intcrnational 73.68  100.00 Belgium
Pages Jaunes do Brasil 73.68  100.00 Brazil
Telelistas 73.68  100.00 Brazil
Activos Mass Market 73.68 106.00 Spain
Indice Multimedia 69.67 94.56 Spain
Wanadoo Espafia 73.68  100.00 Spain
FIT Production 73.68 100.00 France
Kompass France 73.68  100.00 France
Maruapoly 73.68  100.00 France
Nordngt 73.68  100.00 France
Pages Jaunes 73.68 10090 France
Wanadoo. Dats 73.68  100.00 France
Wanado¢ interactive Cable 73.68  100.00 France
Wanadoo Edition 46,95 63.74 France
Wanadoo E-Mercham 73.68  100.00 France
Wanadoo Interactive 73.63 100.00 France
Wanadov Portails 73.653  100.00 France
Wanadoo Services Pro 71.68 100.00 France
Maroc Connect 66.31 90,00 Morocco
Euronet Intemnet © 73.68  100.00 Netherlands
Freeserve holding ple 73.68  100.00 UK~
Buabyworld.com Ltd 7360  100.00 UK
Precserve.com 73.68  100.00 UK
Freeserve Auctions Lid 64.73 87.85 UK
Intracus Lid 73.68 100,00 UK
Freeserve [nvestment Lid 73.68 100.00 UK
F3B Property Company 73.65  100.00 UK
EQUITY ACCOUNTED
COMPANIES
Eurodircetory 36.84 50.00 Luxcmbourg
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Fixed line, voice and data services in France Fixed line, voice and data services in France
sepment sepment

Company Interest  Control  Cowntry Company Interest  Conuol  Country
FULLY CONSOLIDATED FULLY CONSOLIDATED

COMPANIES COMPANIES

Almerys 60.00 60.00 France FT Transmissions Audiovisuelles  100.00  100.00 France
Cit Com 99.97 99.97 France GIE lnnovacomn 92.49  100.00 Frapcc
Cogecom 100.00 100,00 France “Globeeast Reportages 100.00  100.00 France
Cognac Jay Image 100.00 100,00 France Immobiliére FT 100.00  100.00 France
CV2F 100.00 100.00 Frunce Iramobiliére ISIS 100.00  100.00 France
CVF 86.00 £6.00 France Innovacom SA 100.00  100.00 France
Etrali SA 100.00  100.00 France Innovacom | 100.00  100.00 France
fixpertel Consulting 100.00  100.00 Frunce Intelmatique 100,00  100.00 France
Expertel FM 100.00  100.00 Fraace - lnterpac 100.00  100.00 France
France (02 Studio " 100,00  100.00 France Montenay Video 100.00  100.00 France
France Télgvision Entreprise 65,84 65.84 France NEDT{ $1.61 51.61 France
France Telecom CGT 100,00 100.00 France Rapp Fin 100,00 100.00 France
FT Céble 100,00 10000 France . Régie T France 100.00  100.00 France
IT Céble Angers 100,00  100.00 France Resocorn Services 100.00  100.00 France
FT Cablc Atlantique 100,00  100.00 France Setib 9999  99.99 France
-FT Cible Avignon 100,00  100.00 France SFET 100.00  100.00 France
FT Céblc Bassin Parisien 100,00  100.00 France Sofratev 100.00  100.00 France
FT Cable Bordeaux 100.00  100.00 France TDF Cablc Cenod 100,00  100.00 France
FT Cible Cite d'Opale 100.00  100.00 France TDF Cable Est 100.00  100.00 Frahce
FT Cible Dréme 100.00  100.00 TFrunce ‘ THE Vidéo Secvice 10000 100,00 France
FT Catle Lille 100.00 100.00 France ‘TéI¢DifTusion de France (TDF) 100,00  10D.00 Frunce
FT Cable Lorraine 100,00 100.00 France Teliavest ct ses filiales 100.00  100.00 France
FT Céble Marssille 100.00 100.00 France Transpuc 100.00 100,00 France
FT Cable Montpellier 100,00  100.00 France Viacteds 100.00  100.00 France
FT Cible Répion 100,00 100.00 France Visual TV 100.00  100.00 France
FT Cible Reunes 100.00  100.00 France Voltaire Image 100.00  100.00 France
FT Ciblc Roucn 99.99  99.99 France W-l1A 100,00 100.00 France

EQUITY ACCOUNTED

FT Céble SIRCA 10000 100.00 France COMPANIES

FT Cable Tours 99.69 99.69 France

FT c-business 100.00  100.00 France CNTP 50.00 5000 France
T 1mmo © . 100.00 100.00 Frunce Technotom 49,91 4991 France
FT Immo Holding 100.00 100,00 Frunce Télévision Par Satellite (SNC) 1646 2500 France
FT Immo Investisscment 100.00 100,00 France

FT Multimédia 2 100,00 100.00 France

FT chhnoliogie [nvestixserngint 100,00 100.00 Trance

FT Terminuux ) 100.00  100.00 France
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Fixed line, voice and data serviccs outside Fixed line, voice and data services outside France

France segment segment
Company Inerest  Control Country Company laterest  Comtrol Country
FUILY CONSOLIDATED FULLY CONSOLIDATFD
COMPANIES X COMPANIES
FT Deutschland GmbH 100.00  100.00 Germany Global One Communication 100.00 100,00 [reland
Finuncicra S.A. ] 100.00  100.00 Argentina World Operations
Sofrecom Consultora 100.00  100.00 Argentina Etrali SRL 10000 100,00 laly
Atlax Services Belgium 100.00  100.00 Belgium Etrali KK 100.00 100,00 Japan
Mobinvest 75.75 90.00 Belgivm HTCO £8.00 §8,00 Jordan
Cl-Teleom 4590 51.00 Ivory Coast FTM Liban 67.00 67,00 Lebanon
Allas Services Deamatk 100.00 100,00 Denmark Régie T Mcxico 75.00 75,00 Mexico
Menatel 47.00 47.00 Egypt Voxtel 5323 $3,64 Moldavia
Catslana 75.00 75.00 Spain FT Netwark Services Norway 100.00 100,00 Norway
Eurali Espagne 100.00  100.00 Spain Casema 86.00 100,00 Netherlands
Madrid Films 100.00  100.00 Spain DFI 100.00 100,00 Netherlands
Medialatina 100.00  100.00 Spain Dutchtone Group BV B6.00  BG.00 Netherlands
Uniz 100.00  100.00 Spain FT Services Nederdund 100.00 100,00 Netherlands
NRM 100.00  100.00 Spain Global One Communicarions 100.00 100,00 Netherlands
Estel 51.00 51.00 US Serviges
Etrali North America 100.00  100.00 US Global One Communications 100.00 100,00 Netherlunds
FCR America 160.00  100.00 US World Services
¥1' Network 1.LC 100.00  100.00 US Equamt NV (et ses filiales) ) 54.17 54,17 Netherlands
1 Participations US 100,00 100,00 US Newsforee & scs filiales 100.00 100,00 Netherlands
Globecast N.A 100.00 100.00 US TFN 100.00 100,00 Netherlands
Atrium 3 100.00  100.00 France PSN 100.00 100,00 Poland
F2Cs 100.00 100.00 France TOUT 100.00 100,00 Poland
Frrali International 100.00  100.00 France FT Network Scevices UK 100.00 100,00 UK
France Cibles et Radio 100.00  100.00 France FTMAN UK 10000 100,00 UK
FI/FCR Sénégal 100.00 100.00 France Erali UK 100.00 100,00 UK
FCR Cote d'lvoire 90.00 50.00 France FT Participations UK 100.00 100,00 UK
FT Développeineat Intemational 100,00 100.00 France Globecast N.E 100.00 100,00 UK
FTFL 100,00 100.00 France CTE 26.01 51,00 Salvador
T Morine 100.00  100.00 France CTE Telccom Personal 26.01 100,00 Salvador
FT Mobiles (nternational 100.00  100.00 France  _ Publicom 2299 51,00 Salvador
FT Publiphonic Interational 100.00 100.00 France Publitel 26,01 100,00 Sulvador

"1 Services 100.00 100,00 Frunce Telecom ODA 45.08 100,00 Salvador
Sitex 100.00  100.00 Frunce Sonatel 4233 42,33 Sencpal
Rapp 10 100.00 100.00 France Sonatel Mabiles 42.33 100,00 Scnegal
Sofrécom 100.00 100,00 France Etwali Singapore PTE 100.00 100,00 Singaporc
Stellat 70.00 70.00 France FT Network Services Sweden 100.00 100,00 Sweden
DI lntemnational 100.00  100.00 France Eurali Suisse 100.00 100,00 Switzerland
Errali LK 100.00  100.00 Hong Kong FT Nelwork Services Switzerland  100.00 100,00 Swirerland
Ripcoin 100.00  100.00 Muuritius Global Oue Swiss Salcs 100.00 100,00 Switzerjand
Safcable 100,00 100,00 Mauritius FCR Victaam PTE Lid 74.00 74.00 Viemam
Citobal One Communicalions 100.00 100,00 [reland

Uperations k Y Including Global One Communications World
Cilobil One Communication 100.00 100,00 Irelund lolding BV and Global Oac Communications

GIBN FHolding Holding BY from June 29, 2001 (Notc 3)
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Fixed line, voice and data services outside
France segment
Company Interest  Control Country

PROPORTIONALLY
CONSOLIDATED COMPANILCS
DT-FT {ialian 1lolding GmbH 50.00 50,00 Germany

ECMS 36.36 7125 Egypt
MMEA - 3633 71.25 Egypt
MobiNi| 71.2§ 71.25 Egypt
Globecast Espafia S.L. 50.72 50.72 Spain
EBTC 49.00 49,00 Estonia
Digita 49.00 49,00 Fialand
Cell Plus 40.00 40.00 Mauritius
Telecom Mauritivs 40.00 40,00 Mauritius
Telecom Plus 58.00 70.00 Msuritius
Mobilecom 35.20 40,00 Jordan
JTC 35.20 40.00 Jordan
Mctroholdings 50.00 50.00 UK
EQUITY ACCOUNTED

COMPANIES

Nortel Inversora 25.52 50.00 Argenting
Publicom : 1397 50,00 Argentina
Telecom Argentina 13.97 50.00 Argentina
Telecom Personal 13.97 50.00 Argentina
Intelig 25.00 25.00 Brazil
Axion 40,00 40,00 Spain
Pramindo Ikat 40,00 40.00 [ndonesia
Nucleo 9.43 50.00 Paraguay
PTK 34,00 34,00 Poland
TP SA 33.93 33,93 Poland
Clix 43.33 43.33 Portugal
Novis 4333 43.33 Pertugal
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thereunto duly authorized.
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Dated; MAfew 24 T By:
Name: Jean-Claude Grynberg
Title: Director, Investor Relations

Page 1_7_‘ of Zi




